o
HALTON Regulatory Sub Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Thursday, 13 November 2025 9.30 a.m.
The Board Room - Municipal Building,
Widnes

Chief Executive

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Pamela Wallace (Chair)
Councillor Victoria Begg
Councillor Mike Fry

Please contact Kim Butler on 0151 511 7496 or email
kim.butler@halton.gov.uk for further information.

The next meeting of the Committee is to be confirmed



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Part |

Iltem No. Page No.

1. MINUTES 1-13

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST (INCLUDING PARTY WHIP
DECLARATIONS)

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Other Disclosable Interest
which they have in any item of business on the agenda, no later
than when that item is reached or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent and, with Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, to
leave the meeting during any discussion and voting on the item.

3. APPLICATION TO REVIEW A PREMISES LICENCE - 14 - 122
TODAYS EXTRA, 78 ALBERT ROAD, WIDNES, WAS8 6JT




Page 1 Agenda ltem 1

REGULATORY SUB COMMITTEE

At a meeting of the Regulatory Sub Committee on Monday, 14 July 2025 at The Board
Room - Municipal Building, Widnes

EXB3

Present: Councillors Wallace (Chair), Fry and K. Loftus

Apologies for Absence: None

Absence declared on Council business: None

Officers present: E. Wilson-Lagan, K. Hesketh and C. Ward (observer)

Also in attendance: Ms. L. Ashton, Mr. B. Longman and Ms. L. Halliday

ITEM DEALT WITH
UNDER DUTIES
EXERCISABLE BY THE BOARD

Action
APPLICATION TO TRANSFER A PREMISES LICENCE
AND VARY THE DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR
- BLUNDELL ARMS, HALE ROAD, WIDNES, WAS8 85X

This is the formal notification of a decision made by
Halton Borough Council’s Regulatory Sub-Committee at a
hearing held under the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”) on 14
July 2025 in the Boardroom at Municipal Building at 10am.

The hearing was held to hear two applications made
by the applicant, Ms Lorraine Ashton, in respect of the
Blundell Arms, Hale Road, Widnes, WA8 8SX (“the
Premises”). The first application was made under section 42
of the Licensing Act 2003 for the transfer of a Premises
Licence. The second application was made under section 37
for a variation of the Designated Premises Supervisor
(DPS).

The hearing was triggered as a result of a
representation from Cheshire Police to both applications.

In attendance were:-

1. Members of the Regulatory Sub-Committee
comprising Clir Pamela Wallace (“Chair”), Clir Kath




Page 2

Loftus and Clir Mike Fry (collectively referred to as
“the Sub-Committee”);

Ms Lorraine Ashton, (“the Applicant”);

Mr Ben Longman (“the leaseholder of the Premises”);
Ms Lesley Halliday (“Police Licensing Officer”);

Mr Craig Ward (“Licensing Enforcement Officer”);

Kim Hesketh (“Licensing Manager”)

Elizabeth Wilson-Lagan (“Legal Adviser”).

NOoOGkWN

After the Chair had introduced the parties, the Legal
Adviser outlined the procedure to be followed.

DETAILS OF THE APPLICATION

The applications were for a transfer of the premises
licence from Cheshire Retail NW Limited to the Applicant
and for the variation of the DPS from ﬂ to
the Applicant. Both these applications were made with

immediate effect at the time of their submissions on 8 June
2025 and 10 June 2025, respectively.

THE HEARING

The Licensing Manager summarised the contents of
her report, referring to the appendices which included the
Applications (at Appendices A and B) and the Police
representations (Appendix C and D). She explained that
since the publication of her report, Cheshire Police had
submitted witness evidence from Ms Halliday, Special
Constable Tobi Booth and Mr Ward. The applicant
confirmed that she had received a copy of the witness
evidence. Although there was reference to body camera
footage, this was not presented to the Committee or the
Applicant.

Neither of the parties present had any questions for
the Licensing Manager.

The Applicant then presented her case. She
explained that she had been in the pub trade for over 58
years and ran pubs for around 30 years, in both England
and Wales. During this time she had never had a problem
with getting a licence. She stated that she was not aware of
the licensing condition requiring a personal licence holder to
be on the premises at all times and has never known such a
condition in all her years of being in the pub trade. She
explained that it was near impossible to comply with the
condition.

She stated that she had retired around 16 years ago




Page 3

but that she had come out of retirement as she had missed
the work. She had worked at the Premises for around 3
years. She explained that Mr Longman had taken over the
Premises from |l and she was helping the pub out. It
was not a very busy pub and the intention was for it to
become a community pub with the focus on families and
children.

The Applicant had nothing further to say at this stage
and the Legal Adviser explained that this was her
opportunity to put her case and that she may want to
address the issues that the Police had raised. The Applicant
handed over to Mr Longman.

Mr Longman explained that he was nervous having
never attended a Licensing Committee. He is the
leaseholder of the premises and provided a background of
his involvement in the Premises. He started as an investor
around 12/18 months ago When- was the Manager.
His previous business partner, , was a nightmare
and there was a breakdown in their business relationship.

iIs no longer involved in the Premises. He noted
the history of the pub and the problems around drugs and
underage drinking, but explained that this was before he

was involved in the day to day running. He was only ever an
investor at this time and * ran the business for him
and .

Now that he is involved, he wanted to work with the
Police Licensing Officer and the Licensing Enforcement
Officer. He was not aware of the licence condition requiring
someone with a personal licence to be present on the
premises at all times or the action plan with || n
respect of the condition, he also stated was impossible to
comply with. It meant the DPS would never have a holiday
and, whilst there were 3 members of staff with a personal
licence, it would not be financially viable to put anyone else
in for the course. The bar itself was not very busy and that
condition was a problem for the business. He went on to say
that he had emailed the Police Licensing Officer and the
Licensing Enforcement Officer asking for a meeting to
discuss removing the condition but he had not heard from
them. Whilst they told him they did not receive his email, he
has it on his phone.

In relation to the applicant, he stated that she was the
most experienced DPS that he knew. She is going to be
working at the Premises all the time and that he was not
going to be there. He is not shying away but wants to work
with the Police going forward to ensure compliance.




Page 4

Questions were then put to the Applicant which were
initially answered by Mr Longman. He stated that he would
require at least 5 members of staff with a personal licence to
run the bar in compliance with the condition which made it
impossible for them to operate. Ideally, he wanted that
condition removed as the pub does not make that much
money and it would not be viable to put that many staff
through the personal licence course. He stated that with only
3 DPS’s (the Sub-Committee understood this to mean
personal licence holders), he may be seen behind the bar to
ensure compliance, or even cleaning the toilets, as he would
hate to see the bar go under.

When questioned on his level of involvement in the
business, Mr Longman confirmed that he was the boss, the
leaseholder and that he was hands on and he would do spot
visits himself to ensure compliance with the licence going
forward. He is the boss that you don’t want but he can only
deal with issues that he sees. Certainly, staff should not be
drinking whilst on duty. He stated it was unfortunate that
members of staff have drank alcohol whilst on duty in the
past but there was a notice on the wall requiring staff not to
drink and it was something he would deal with if he knew
about it. The Landlord is Cheshire Retail.

The Applicant stated that she would pay the staff

wages from the till and leave a note for Mr Longman. But,
overall, he was responsible for the financial booking for the
business. He was also responsible for staff training and
ensuring there was a personal licence holder on the
premises at all times.
The Applicant stated that she loved the business and did not
want to be at the committee hearing. She confirmed that she
had not received any training whilst working at the Premises
but had over 50 years’ experience. She stated that she was
not familiar with the term “DPS” and asked whether this was
new terminology.

She also disputed the Police’s evidence that she had
been I <h-
had left that evening because of personal issues. She drives
to and from work and therefore || GGG -s
otherwise she could not get home. Mr Longman confirmed
that he had said to the Police that she had left because she
was [l and was not something he wanted to admit.
But then said, she was not on duty at the time. The
Applicant also disputed the comment made by Mr Ward that

she had || during his visit on 2 July 2025. She
had been sitting at the end of the bar which is where she sits




Page 5

when not on duty.

When questioned on how she would ensure
promotion of the crime prevention objective, she stated that
she would do her best. She would not tolerate drugs and bar
people. Other than that there wasn’t much more she could
do. She did not consider it was her responsibility to ensure
compliance with the personal licence holder condition.

Ms Halliday then put forward her case. She stated
that she had seen the body camera footage of Special
Constable Tobi Booth from the compliance visit on 7 June
2025 and could confirm that Mr Longman had said that Ms
Ashton had been on duty and had left after |Gz

She considered that Mr Longman was being
economic with the truth when he said that he was not aware
of the conditions of the licence, particularly with regards to
the requirement for a personal licence holder to be on the
premises at all times. This was made known to Mr Longman
during the compliance visit on 2 April 2025 which was also
followed up in writing. Non-compliance with the licensing
conditions had been ongoing for over 18 months which
resulted in an action plan being drawn up. Ms Ashton and
Mr Longman were made aware of that plan and there has
been no engagement to date.

She went on to explain that whenever she has visited
the Premises, Ms Aston has not been present and she
considered that she was not in control of the business and is
just a name on the licence.

Despite the historic problems with drugs, underage
drinking and trading outside of hours, nobody was engaging
with the Police and ensuring the premises was being ran
well. There was no staff training, the refusal register was not
being completed or signed off by the DPS as required and
the personal licence condition was not being adhered to. Ms
Halliday had grave concerns if the applications were granted
since Ms Ashton was not in day to day control of the
business, | - the lack
of engagement in respect of the issues set out in the action
plan.

She also made reference to noise complaints. The
Sub-Committee were reminded that it was the crime
prevention objective that was the relevant issue.

Ms Halliday confirmed that she had not received an email
from Mr Longman about removing the personal licence




Page 6

condition.

Questions were asked, particularly in respect of Mr
Ward’s evidence. Given that Ms Aston had not fully
addressed Mr Ward’s evidence in her submissions, the Sub-
Committee gave both parties an additional 5 minutes to deal
with this in the interests of fairness. Ms Aston confirmed that
she had told Mr Ward it was not her responsibility to ensure
that a personal licence holder was on the premises at all
times as this was something Mr Longman sorted out. She
confirmed that “Sarah” who was taking over from her on the
day in question did not have a personal licence.

Both parties summoned up accordingly.

THE DETERMINATION

The Sub-Committee resolved to REFUSE:-

1. The application to transfer the premises licence to the
Applicant;

2. The application to vary the Designated Premises
Supervisor to the Applicant.

REASONS FOR THE DETERMINATION

In making its decision, the Sub-Committee took into
consideration the written representations, the witness
evidence and the oral statements made at the hearing
together with the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy
and the Section 182 Guidance.

In particular, the Sub-Committee found that:-

1. The Applicant was not the person carrying on the
business or the person with the day to day
responsibility for the premises. This was evidenced
by the fact that:-

a. Mr Longman was the boss as per his numerous
statements to this effect;

b. Mr Longman was the leaseholder of the premises;

c. Mr Longman was responsible for staff training;

d. Whilst the Applicant paid staff wages from the till,
she would leave a note confirming this to Mr
Longman,;

e. It was Mr Longman that was responsible for the
financial book keeping for the business.

f. The Applicant confirmed that Mr Longman was
responsible for ensuring there was someone with




Page 7

a personal licence on the premises at all times —
therefore he was the one with the responsibility for
complying with the licence condition.

g. It was Mr Longman who mainly addressed the
committee at the hearing and explained how the
premises was run as opposed to the Applicant.

As such, the Sub-Committee did not consider the

Applicant to be the appropriate person applying to be the
Premises Licence Holder (“PLH”) or Designated Premises
Supervisor (“DPS”).

1.

2.

In addition, the Sub-Committee, in looking to the
Police as the main source of advice on crime and
disorder as set out in the Section 182 Guidance,
placed significant weight on the evidence of Ms
Halliday and Special Constable Tobi Booth. They
accepted that the premises had a history of offences
under the Licensing Act 2003 and non-compliance
with the licence conditions. Whilst appreciating this
was before the Applicant’s time as PLH and DPS, the
Sub-Committee were not confident that she would be
able to ensure compliance with the licence and
promote the crime objective going forward given the
Applicant’s limited responsibility in the business.

This was further supported by the fact that:-

a. The Applicant had been the PLH and DPS since 8
and 10 June respectively but, despite the historic
problems and the action plan that had been
agreed by the former DPS, she had not
familiarised herself with the licensing conditions. in
fact, she stated that she was unaware of personal
licence holder condition and the Police Licensing
Officer confirmed there had been no engagement
with her or Mr Ward on the issues identified in the
action plan;

b. During the compliance visit on 2 April 2025, Ms
Ashton had stated to Mr Ward that ensuring there
was a personal licence holder on site at all times
was nothing to do with her despite her being the
DPS and this being a condition of the licence. At
the hearing, the Applicant accepted that she had
said this.

c. Although the Applicant stated that the condition
was unrealistic and wanted to have it removed
from the licence, the condition remained live and
therefore its non-compliance was an offence
under section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003. The




Page 8

fact that the Applicant, as DPS, did not seek to
comply with that condition was concerning.

d. Despite the Applicant having over 50 years’
experience in the pub trade, including around 30
years managing pubs, she did not come across as
being knowledgeable about the Licensing Act or
her duties and responsibilities as a DPS and had
not received any recent training or any training
during her 3 years working at the Premises.

3. The Sub-Committee noted the Police’s concerns as
to the suitability of the Applicant in light to the
allegations that she had been | GGG hist
on duty. Although this was hearsay and less weight
was therefore attached to it, the Sub-Committee did
consider there was some truth in the allegation given
that Mr Longman had confirmed at the hearing that
he had told officers on 7 June 2025 that Ms Aston
had gone home ﬂfurther supported
by the fact that whilst on duty
appeared to have been tolerated historically at the
Premises and as Mr Ward had also noted the

on the Applicant at the time of his visit on 2
April 2025. The Sub-Committee therefore has
concerns over the Applicant's ability to run the
Premises in a safe and responsible manner.

4. The comments of Mr Longman, about moving forward
and ensuring compliance have been noted and are
welcomed. However, Mr Longman is not the PLH or
the DPS and on the evidence before it, the Sub-
Committee considers that granting the applications
made by the Applicant would undermine the crime
prevention objective.

Meeting ended at 12.51 p.m.



At a meeting of the Regulatory Sub Committee on Thursday, 28 August 2025 at The

Page 9

REGULATORY SUB COMMITTEE

Board Room - Municipal Building, Widnes

REGS4

Present: Councillors Wallace (Chair), Abbott and Fry
Apologies for Absence: None.

Absence declared on Council business: None.
Officers present: E. Wilson-Lagan and C. Ward

Also in attendance: None

ITEM DEALT WITH
UNDER DUTIES
EXERCISABLE BY THE BOARD

APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE - CAVENDISH
STORE, 6 BALFOUR STREET, RUNCORN, WA7 4PH

This is the formal notification of a decision made by
Halton Borough Council’'s Regulatory Sub-Committee at a
hearing held under the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”) on 28
August 2025 in the Boardroom at Municipal Building at
10:30 am.

The hearing was held to hear an application made by
Mr Abdullah Waris (“the Applicant”) under section 17 of the
Act for a premises licence at Cavendish Store, 6 Balfour
Street, Runcorn, WA7 4PH (“the Premises”). The hearing
was triggered by a representation from local residents, Mr
Kenneth and Lisa Smith (“the Objectors”), on the grounds of
public nuisance.

In attendance were:-

1. Members of the Regulatory Sub-Committee
comprising Clir Pamela Wallace (“Chair”), Clir John
Abbott and Clir Mike Fry (collectively referred to as
“the Sub-Committee”);

Mr Tony Clarke (“agent for the Applicant”)

Mr Craig Ward (“Licensing Enforcement Officer”);
Elizabeth Wilson-Lagan (“Legal Adviser”).

hwn

The Applicant was not in attendance, having




Page 10

previously notified the Council that he would be represented
at the hearing by his agent, Mr Tony Clake.

The Objectors failed to attend the hearing and the
Sub-Committee heard evidence from Mr Craig Ward that
notice of the hearing had been served on the Objectors by
post on 25 July 2025. As no response had been received to
that letter, a further letter attaching notice of the hearing was
hand delivered by the Council’s Licensing Manager, Kim
Hesketh, on 8" August 2025. The Sub-Committee found that
the Objectors had been served with adequate notice of the
hearing and, in accordance with Regulation 20 of the
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005,
determined to hold the hearing in the Objector’s absence.

After the Chair had introduced the parties, the Legal
Adviser outlined the procedure to be followed.

DETAILS OF THE APPLICATION

The application was for a premises licence for the
supply of alcohol from Monday to Sunday between 7 am and
11 pm at the above Premises. A number of conditions were
proposed which were detailed further in the operating
schedule attached to the application (Appendix C to the
Licensing Report).

THE HEARING

The Licensing Enforcement Officer summarised the
contents of his report, referring to the appendices which
included a map of the location of the Premises (Appendix A),
the details of nearby licensed premises, including their
licensed hours (Appendix B), the Application (Appendix C)
and Objector's joint representation (Appendix D) and
relevant sections of the Revised Guidance issued under
section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Appendix E)(“the
Statutory Guidance”).

Mr Ward explained that the Premises, which was to
become a general grocery store, had previously been
occupied by the Runcorn Conservative Club who had held a
premises licence for the supply of alcohol and regulated
entertainment from 24 November 2005 until 30 November
2024. During this time, the licensable hours for the supply of
alcohol were Sunday to Thursday 10 am to midnight and
Friday and Saturday 10 am to 2 am. There were also a
number of licensed premises within the vicinity, including
another grocery store, namely the Co-Op, which was located
further along on the same street and had similar licensable




Page 11

hours to those proposed by the application. He went on to
explain that none of the relevant authorities, including
Environmental Health, had objected to the application and
the only matter before the Sub-Committee was the
representation received by the Objectors who objected to
the application on the grounds of public nuisance. The crux
of their objection was that a further licensed premises would
increase noise, litter and loitering. They also mentioned
issues with road congestion and parking as well as there
being no need for another licensed premises.

Mr Clarke then presented the Applicant’s case. He
explained that the premises would be a general grocery
store and part of a chain selling their own goods. He has
known the Applicant for a while and confirms that he has
industry knowledge and currently works for another client of
his in another store. The Applicant now wants his own
business and he is fully supported by his boss in this
respect. He was financially committed and, whilst there were
outstanding planning issues, he was taking the appropriate
steps to obtain the relevant permission.

The application itself was, in his view, robust with
appropriate conditions for promoting the licensing objectives.
In terms of the licensable hours, he stated that these were
respectful and ended earlier than the previous licence which
went on until 2 am. There had been no objections from the
Police or other responsible authorities. In relation to the
resident objection, the conditions dealt with the potential for
public nuisance. He explained the nature of the conditions
and further emphasised that once people had left the vicinity
of the premises, they were responsible for their own
behaviour. The premises could only monitor people coming
in and out of the premises, for which they also had CCTV in
place and would be available to the Police. He also
addressed some of the residents other concerns regarding
the need for another licence premise and stated that this
was a planning issue and not a licensing concept.

Mr Clarke addressed the Sub-Committee’s further
guestions on the licensing hours and staff training.

Given that the Objector's were not in attendance,
Mr Ward read out their representation in full.

Mr Clarke then summed up the Applicant’s case,
following which all parties withdrew from the room for the
Sub-Committee to conduct deliberations on the matter.

THE DETERMINATION




Page 12

The Sub-Committee considered the application, the

residents’ objection and the oral submissions heard from the
Applicant’s agent at the hearing.

In doing so, the Sub-Committee resolved to GRANT

the application for a Premises Licence in respect of the
above Premises subject to the hours set out below, the
conditions set out in the Operating Schedule and the
mandatory conditions:

The supply of alcohol by retail

Days of Operation Hours of Operation

Monday — Sunday 07:00 to 23:00

Hours open to the public

Days of Operation Hours of Operation

Monday — Sunday 07:00 to 23:00

REASONS FOR THE DETERMINATION

In reaching its decision, the Sub-Committee have

taken into consideration the Licensing Objectives, the
statutory guidance and the Council's own Statement of
Licensing Policy.

The reasons for the decision were:-

. Significant weight was placed on the fact that none of

the responsible authorities had objected to the
application;

The Sub-Committee considered that the Applicant
was suitably qualified to run the premises in a
responsible manner and in promotion of the licensing
objectives;

In considering the residents’ objection, the Sub-
Committee noted that matters had been raised that
were outside the control of the licensing regime and
pertained to planning, such as the “need” for a further
licensed premise, congestion and parking issues.
These are matters for planning and highways and
were not therefore taken into consideration;

In terms of the public nuisance element of the
objection, the Sub-Committee considered there was a
risk for noise, littering and loitering. However,
condition 6 (which requires management and staff to
use their best endeavours to prevent persons loitering
outside the premises and to ensure that persons
refused entry or ejected are asked to leave the




Page 13

vicinity of the premises), condition 7 (which requires
prominent, clear and legible notices must be
displayed at all exists requesting that customers
respect the needs of local residents and to leave the
premises and area quietly and to properly dispose of
litter), and condition 8 (requiring staff to monitor the
area immediately outside the premises on a regular
basis to check for, and to properly dispose of any
litter from the premises) adequately dealt with those
risks;

5. The Statutory Guidance makes it clear the actions of
individuals beyond the immediate area surrounding
the premises are matters for the personal
responsibility of individuals under the law and not the
licensed premises. As such, further conditions were
not considered necessary or justifiable;

6. In terms of the opening and licensable hours, the
Council’'s own Statement of Licensing Policy states
that “with regards to shops, stores and supermarkets,
the norm will be for such premises to be free to
provide sales of alcohol for consumption off the
premises at any times when the retail outlet is open
for shopping unless there are very good reasons for
restricting those hours”. The Sub-Committee did not
consider there were good reasons for restricting the
hours, further noting that none of the responsible
authorities had objected to the hours; and

7. On the whole, the Sub-Committee found the
application promoted the licensing objectives.

The Sub-Committee recommended that the applicant
and residents engage in dialogue should there be any
concerns in future. In the event thatthe proposed operation
of the premises does lead to issues, residents were strongly
advised to report matters to the relevant responsible
authorities.

There were powers to deal with premises if a licence
leads to the licensing objectives being undermined. Not least
was the power for residents or responsible authorities to
bring review proceedings where steps could be taken to
restrict the licence, impose further conditions or, in extreme
circumstances, revoke the licence when evidence shows
issues result from a licensable activity. Action could also be
taken separately by environmental health in relation to
statutory noise nuisance, if reported. The Sub-Committee
hoped that this brought some reassurance to the residents.

Meeting ended at 12.05 p.m.



REPORT:

DATE:

REPORTING OFFICER:

Page 14 Agenda Item 3

Regulatory Sub-Committee
13 November 2025

Director — Legal and Democratic Services

PORTFOLIO: Resources

SUBJECT: Application to Review a Premises Licence —
Todays Extra, 78 Albert Road, Widnes,
WAS8 6JT

WARDS: Appleton

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

To assist the Members of the Regulatory Sub-Committee in their
consideration of an application brought by Home Office Immigration
Enforcement to Review the Premises Licence for Todays Extra, 78
Albert Road, Widnes.

2. RECOMMENDATION that

The Sub-Committee considers the contents of the report and makes a
determination on the application.

3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1

3.2

3.3

An application has been made by Home Office Immigration
Enforcement to Review the Premises Licence for Todays
Extra, 78 Albert Road, Widnes.

The review was requested by Home Office Immigration
Enforcement on the 20" August 2025 and pursuant to Section
51 of the Licensing Act 2003 on the grounds that the premises
has undermined the licensing objective of the prevention of
crime and disorder.

The premises licence was granted on the 18™ January 2021
with Red Cherry Retail Limited being the Premises Licence
Holder. On the 19™ June 2025 the premises licence was
transferred to the current licence holder, Diamond 8 Retail
Limited.



Page 15

THE APPLICATION

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

The application to review the premises licence for Todays
Extra, 78 Albert Road, Widnes was submitted on the 20t
August 2025, a copy of the application can be found at
Appendix A of this report.

A copy of the current premises licence can be found at
Appendix B of this report.

Officers have undertaken checks on Companies House, at the
time of writing this report, and can confirm that both the
previous premises licence holder (Red Cherry Retail Ltd) and
the current Premises Licence Holder Diamond 8 Retail Limited
are both active. The DPS is Dinesh Fernando and it is the
Home Officer’s case that he has connections to both of these
companies.

REQUIREMENT FOR A HEARING

The review application was received on the 20" August and
was sent to all the Responsible Authorities on the 215t August
2025 with the closing date for comments or representations of
the 18" September 2025.

The required notices advertising the review were displayed on
the Premises, Councils Website and at the Council Offices on
the 215t August 2025.

The review application states as follows.

We have grounds to believe the license holder had failed to
meet the licensing objectives of prevention of crime and
disorder, as illegal working has been identified at this
premises.

Section 36 and Schedule 4 of the Immigration Act 2016 (the
2016 Act) amended the Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) to
introduce immigration safeguards in respect of the licensing
applications made in England and Wales on or after the 6 April
2017. The intention is to prevent illegal working in premises
licensed for the sale of alcohol or late-night refreshment.

The Home Secretary (in practice Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement)) was added to the list of Responsible Authorities
(RA) in the licensing regime, which requires the Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) to receive premises licence
applications (except regulated entertainment only licences
and applications to vary a Designated Premises Supervisor



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

Page 16

(DPS)), and in some limited circumstances personal licence
applications. In carrying out the role of responsible authority,
Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) is permitted to make
relevant representations and objections to the grant of a
licence or request a review of an existing licence as a
responsible authority where there is concern that a licence and
related licensable activity is prejudicial to the prevent of
immigration crime including illegal working.

Please refer to accompanies review pack for detailed
information.

As part of the review submissions on the 20" August 2025,
Home Office Immigration Enforcement provided the following
supporting documents.

A case summary,

Licensed premises history,
Enforcement visit dated 4" April 2024,
Enforcement visit dated 18™ July 2025,
Reason for review,

Outcome sought,

Appendix — supporting evidence.

The case summary states that the Home Office Immigration
Enforcement visited the premises on the 18" July 2025 for a
second time where one illegal worker was encountered.

The case summary also states that the premises was also
visited on the 4™ April 2024 (three illegal workers). lllegal
working has been a constant theme throughout the two visit,
there have been a total of four illegal workers encountered at
the premises.

The Case Summary outlines a civil penalty notice for the sum
of £120,000 was issued to Red Cherry Retail Ltd on the 7t
May 2024 for employing two individuals who had no right to
work in the UK and for employing a third in breach of visa
restrictions. Red Cherry Retail Ltd, objected to the penalty,
the case has been reconsidered twice but the penalty remains
at the same level.

A formal instalment plan has not been arranged, some
payments have been made, the most recent payment being
made on the 6" August 2025, the balance remains at
£110,000.

Red Cherry Retail Ltd have applied to be compulsory struck
off from Companies Houses on 24" September 2024, the Civil
Penalties Team have objected to this and the application was
suspended. Red Cherry Retail Ltd then applied to be struck

3



5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

Page 17

off again on the 1t July 2025 but again the Civil Penalties
objected to this and this application has been suspended, this
application was discontinued on the 19t July 2025

A copy of the review application can be found at Appendix A
of your report.

A copy of the supporting documents provided by the Home
Office Immigration Enforcement on the 20" August 2025 can
be found at Appendix C of your report.

The hearing is held in accordance with the Act and the
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005. The
procedure to be followed has been circulated to all parties and
will be repeated at the beginning of the hearing.

The hearing is held to consider the application to review the
premises licence and the relevant representations received..
These are the representations made by Cheshire Police,
Cheshire Fire, and One Ward Councillor.

At the time of writing this report | have not received any
indication from the Cheshire Police, Cheshire Fire, or the
Ward Councillor, if they will be making any submissions to the
Sub-Committee at the hearing. All parties have all been
informed of the hearing.

THE REPRESENTATIONS

6.1

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES

Relevant representations have been received from Cheshire
Fire, Cheshire Police, and One Ward Councillor.

Cheshire Police

Cheshire Constabulary supports the Home Office Immigration
Review application which seeks revocation of the premises
licence. They advise that, in addition to the immigration
offences, they identified breaches of the licence conditions
regarding CCTV requirements during their compliance visit on
18 July 2025. This also undermines the prevention of crime
and disorder objective.

Attached at Appendix D is a copy of the supporting
documentation submitted on behalf of Cheshire Police.



Page 18

Cheshire Fire

Relevant Representations have been received from Cheshire
Fire on the grounds of Public Safety. In particular, there
appears to be a prohibition notice issued against the premises
and Cheshire Fire has concerns that this will be breached in
light of the immigration findings. Public Safety objective has
not been adequately addressed, attached at Appendix E is
copy of the objection.

Ward Councillor

One representation was received from a Ward Councillor in
support of the withdrawal of the premises licence on the
grounds of crime and disorder, namely failing to act in
accordance with the Licensing Act/not operating within the law
on information from the Home Office.

Attached at Appendix F is a copy of the objection.

7. EVIDENCE

In accordance with the normal procedure, it is noted that the
relevant representations do not amount to evidence. The
objectors have been requested to supply the evidence they
intend to rely on no later than 5 working days prior to the
hearing. When received this will be forwarded to the applicant
and members of the committee.

8. LEGAL AND POLICY FRAMEWORK

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

The Sub-Committee must determine the application with a
view to promoting the licensing objectives which are:

- The prevention of crime and disorder;
- The prevention of public nuisance;

- Public Safety;

- The protection of children from harm.

In making its decision, the Sub-Committee must also have
regard to the national guidance issued under section 182 of
the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Guidance”) and the Council’s
Statement of Licensing Policy (“Policy”).

Relevant sections from the Guidance can be found at
Appendix G.



9.1

10.

10.1

11.

111

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

Page 19

OPTIONS

The Sub-Committee has the following options under Section 52 of the
Act;

(1) To modify the conditions of the premises licence,

(2) To exclude licensable activity from the scope of the licence,
(3) To remove the designated premises supervisor,

(4) To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months,
(5) To revoke the licence.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

There are no special financial considerations to the Authority which
need to be highlighted at this stage. However, it should be noted that
the decision of the sub-committee is subject to appeal to the
Magistrates’” Court. If an appeal is made, there will be costs
associated with this.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

Improving Health, Promoting Wellbeing and Supporting Greater
Independence

None
Building a Strong, Sustainable Local Economy
None

Supporting Children, Young People and Families

None

Tackling Inequality and Helping Those Who Are Most In Need
None

Working Towards a Greener Future

None



Page 20

12.6 Valuing and Appreciating Halton and Our Community
None

13. RISK ANALYSIS

13.1. The Council is required to hold the hearing in accordance with the
Licensing Act 2003. Failure to do so, may mean that the Council is
acting in breach of its obligations under that Act.

14. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

14.1 There are no equality and diversity issues to highlight.

15. CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS

15.1 There are no climate change implications since the decision will have
no effect on the environment.

16. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer

Application Documents | Legal Services Kim Hesketh




Page 21
Appendix A

Licensing Authority: Halton Borough Council
By Email : legalservices@halton.gov.uk

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under
the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand, please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases
ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional
sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

| Home Office Immigration Enforcement

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of
a club premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described in Part 1 below

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Todays Extra

78 Albert Road

Widnes

Post town Post code
Chesire WAS8 6JT

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if
known)
Diamond 8 Retail Ltd

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
LPA0436

Part 2 - Applicant details

lam
Please tick v" yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) ]
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) X



Page 22

3) a member of the club to which this application relates
(please complete (A) below)

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick v yes

M [ Mrs [ Miss [ ] Ms ] Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

I am 18 years old or over

Please tick v yes

[l

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)




Page 23

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Home Office

Immigration Enforcement
Alcohol Licensing Team
6" Floor, 2 Ruskin Square
Dingwall Road

Croydon

CRO 2WF

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)
ie.licensing.reviews@homeoffice.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v/

1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety L]
3) the prevention of public nuisance ]
4) the protection of children from harm ]

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

Grounds for review:
We have grounds to believe the license holder has failed to meet the licensing objectives of
prevention of crime and disorder, as illegal working has been identified at this premises.

Section 36 and Schedule 4 of the Immigration Act 2016 (the 2016 Act) amended the
Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) to introduce immigration safeguards in respect of
licensing applications made in England and Wales on or after 6 April 2017. The intention is
to prevent illegal working in premises licensed for the sale of alcohol or late-night
refreshment.

The Home Secretary (in practice Home Office (Immigration Enforcement)) was added to the
list of Responsible Authorities (RA) in the licensing regime, which requires Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) to receive premises licence applications (except regulated
entertainment only licences and applications to vary a Designated Premises Supervisor
(DPS)), and in some limited circumstances personal licence applications. In carrying out the
role of responsible authority, Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) is permitted to make
relevant representations and objections to the grant of a licence or request a review of an
existing licence as a responsible authority where there is concern that a licence and related
licensable activity is prejudicial to the prevention of immigration crime including illegal
working.




Page 24

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

Please refer to accompanied review pack for detailed information

Please tick v
yes

Have you made an application for review relating to the ]
premises before?

If yes, please state the date of that application Day Month Year

If you have made representations before relating to the premises, please state what
they were and when you made them

Please tick v/
yes

e | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible X
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate, as appropriate

e | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my X
application will be rejected




Page 25

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent
(please read guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in

what capacity.

Signature S Prashar

Capacity = Responsible Authority

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Alcohol Licensing Team

2 Ruskin Square

Dingwall Road
Post town Post Code
Croydon CRO0 2WF

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail
address (optional) ie.licensing.reviews@homeoffice.gov.uk

Notes for Guidance

1. Aresponsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and
other statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems
which are included in the grounds for review if available.

4. The application form must be signed.

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf
provided that they have actual authority to do so.

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this
application.




Page 26
APPENDIX B

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

Part 1 - Premises Details

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

Todays Extra

78 Albert Road, Wdnes, Cheshire, WA8 6JT.

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

- provision of late night refreshment
- the sale by retail of alcohol

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To
L. Late night refreshment (Indoors)
Monday to Thursday 11:00pm Midnight
Friday and Saturday 11:00pm 1:00am
Sunday 11:00pm Midnight
M. The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only
Monday to Thursday 6:00am Midnight
Friday and Saturday 6:00am 1:00am
Sunday 6:00am Midnight

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To
Monday to Thursday 6:00am Midnight
Friday and Saturday 6:00am 1:00am
Sunday 6:00am Midnight

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES
- M. The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only

Part 2

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL (WHERE RELEVANT) OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Diamond 8 Retail Ltd 16 Glenbank Close, Liverpool, L9 2NR.

Printed by LalPac on 23 Sep 2025 at 8:31 |||"||| |||||"|"||”"l”mm“llm’mmumm ary LPA0436/31386  Page 10f 8



Page 27

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

(

Licensing Act 2003
\Premises Licence

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

Diamond 8 Retail Ltd 15732649

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE
AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Dinesh FERNANDO [EiGIefbaRKICIosaNliVarooolIEgIZBR]

PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTHORITY OF PERSONAL LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR
WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Licence No. I Issued by |

Definitions:

“Act” means the Licensing Act 2003

“Application” means the Application for this Licence submitted by or on behalf of the Holder
“Holder” means the Licence Holder named on this Licence

“Licensing Authority” means Halton Borough Council

“Operating Schedule” means the Operating Schedule accompanying the Application

THIS LICENCE CONSTITUTES A NEW LICENCE AS DEFINED IN THE ACT
The Holder shall comply with the following conditions:

A Alteration of details relating to this Licence
No details set out on this Licence shall be altered without the consent of the Licensing Authority

B Compliance with the Operating Schedule
The Holder shall comply with the Operating Schedule and the details set out in the Application except as
varied or inconsistent with anything set out in this Licence

C Conditions agreed by the Holder during the Licence application process in the application
dated 17 December 2020.
None

Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

Prevention of crime and disorder
A CCTV camera system capable of providing evidential quality images in all lighting conditions shall be
used covering the interior and the immediate exterior (entrance) of the shop. Images will be retained for a

period of at least 28 days and be made available to the Police upon request within a reasonable time

Printed by LalPac on 23 Sep 2025 at 8:31 |||"||| |||||"|"||”"l”mm“llm’lumumm ary LPA0436/31386  Page 2 of 8




Page 28

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

-

Licensing Act 2003
\Premises Licence

ANNEXES continued ...

period.

The CCTYV recording equipment shall be kept in a secure environment under the control of the premises
licence holder (PLH) and/or another named responsible individual.

A staff training scheme shall be used for all staff authorised to sell alcohol. The training will cover the
importance of preventing under age sales and complying with licence conditions. Refresher training will
be provided every 12 months, records will be kept and be made available to responsible authorities

All staff selling alcohol shall be authorised to sell alcohol in writing and a record of the authorisation will
be kept in the shop for inspection.

The PLH and staff will be vigilant and monitor the area immediately outside the shop to check that youths
do not cause annoyance by congregating.

Spirits will be kept behind the counter.

Any incidents of crime and disorder at or immediately outside the premises, witnessed by staff, will be
recorded in an incident book kept at the premises. This book will be kept in the shop and available for
inspection.

The premises shall operate an alcohol refusals policy - alcohol will not be sold to;

(1) Any person recognised or identified as a street drinker (regardless of their level of inebriation at the
time);

(2) Any person found to be drinking alcohol in the street;

(3) Any person who is drunk or appears to be drunk;

(4) Any person suspected of trying to buy alcohol for another person who is drunk or appears to be
drunk;

(5) Any person unable to provide valid ID when requested by staff;

(6) Any person who is verbally or physically abusive towards staff or customers.

(7) To any person suspected of trying to buy alcohol for another person(s) who may be under age.

A notice advising customers of the refusals policy shall be on display.

'Crimestoppers' promotional material will be on display to promote the initiative.

Public safety

Pri LalPac on 23 Sep 2025 at 8:31 P f
rinted by LalPac on 23 Sep 2025 at 8:3 |||"||||||||"|"||”"l”mm“llu”umummary LPA0436/31386  Page 3 of 8



Page 29

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

-

&

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

ANNEXES continued ...
Appropriate fire safety equipment to be available, and the PLH shall comply with other legislative

requirements to ensure that the shop is safe for customers and staff.

Prevention of public nuisance

Deliveries to the premises will be arranged so as not to cause will not lead to any public nuisance.
Notices shall be on display in the premises asking customers to leave the premises quietly.

Staff will monitor the area immediately outside the premises on a regular basis to check for, and to
properly dispose of, any litter from the premises.

Protection of children from harm

Anyone who appears to be under 21 years old who attempts to purchase alcohol will be asked to prove
their age by producing an acceptable form of photographic ID such as a passport, photo driving licence,
military ID and PASS accredited proof of age cards.

Challenge 21 posters shall be on display in the shop.

A refusals register (for the sale of alcohol) will be kept and be available for inspection by responsible
authorities.

Notices shall be displayed in the premises where they can be seen clearly to advise customers that it is
unlawful for persons under 18 to purchase alcohol or for any persons to purchase alcohol on behalf of a
person under 18 years of age.

D Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

D - Display of Licence

D1 The Summary Licence or a certified copy of that summary must be prominently displayed at the
premises whenever the premises are being used for one or more licensable activities authorised by the
licence.

D2 A notice specifying the position held at the premises by any person nominated for the purposes S
57 (2) of the LA 2003 (which relates to the keeping at the premises of the premises licence or a certified
copy of it) must be prominently displayed at the premises whenever the premises are being used for one
or more licensable activities authorised by the licence.

D3 Whenever the premises are being used for one or more licensable activities authorised by the
licence a constable or an authorised officer may require any person referred to in D2 as the person
nominated for the purposes of S 57 (2) L A 2003 to produce the premises licence or a certified copy of it.

Pri LalPac on 23 Sep 2025 at 8:31 Page 4 of
rinted by LalPac on 23 Sep 2025 at 8:3 |||"||||||||"|"||”"l”mm“llulrlumummary LPA0436/31386  Page 4 of 8



Page 30

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

-

Licensing Act 2003
\Premises Licence

ANNEXES continued ...

E Mandatory Conditions

Supply of alcohol

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal
licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a
personal licence.

2.-(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification
policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age
(or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

F Miscellaneous conditions
NONE

G Pre-existing conditions
N/a

H Plans
The Plan(s) submitted with the Application referenced PICTO05 dated 04 November 2020 form part of this
Licence

SEASONAL AND NON STANDARD TIMINGS
For the categories Late Night Refreshment, The Supply of Alcohol and Hours the premises are open to
the public the hours shall be -

An extra hour on Bank Holidays, Christmas Eve, New Year’s Eve and Sundays immediately preceding a
Bank Holiday Monday

Pri LalPac on 23 Sep 2025 at 8:31 P f
rinted by LalPac on 23 Sep 2025 at 8:3 |||"||||||||"|"||”"l”mm“llu”umummary LPA0436/31386  Page 5 of 8



Page 31

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

Printed by LalPac on 23 Sep 2025 at 8:31 I|I"||||||I||"""”|||||||II"I|”W| Huu]maw LPA0436/31386  Page 6 of 8



Page 32

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence Summary

Premises Details

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

Todays Extra

78 Albert Road, Wdnes, Cheshire, WAS8 6JT.

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

- provision of late night refreshment
- the sale by retail of alcohol

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To
L. Late night refreshment (Indoors)
Monday to Thursday 11:00pm Midnight
Friday and Saturday 11:00pm 1:00am
Sunday 11:00pm Midnight
M. The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only
Monday to Thursday 6:00am Midnight
Friday and Saturday 6:00am 1:00am
Sunday 6:00am Midnight

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To
Monday to Thursday 6:00am Midnight
Friday and Saturday 6:00am 1:00am
Sunday 6:00am Midnight

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES
- M. The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Diamond 8 Retail Ltd 16 Glenbank Close, Liverpool, L9 2NR.

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)
Diamond 8 Retail Ltd 15732649

Printed by LalPac on 23 Sep 2025 at 8:31 |||"||| ||||||""||”|||||||IIHI|IN“|| Hu"qmary LPA0436/31386  Page 7 of 8



Page 33

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence Summary

NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED

Not applicable

Printed by LalPac on 23 Sep 2025 at 8:31 |||"||| ||||||""||”|||||||IIHI|IN“|| Hu"qmary LPA0436/31386  Page 8 of 8


FisherK
Highlight


Page 34

Premises Licence Review

Todays Extra
/8 Albert Road
Widnes
Cheshire

WAS8 6JT

APPENDIX C



Page 35

Contents

CASE SUMIMAIY ...euiiii it e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e eeeeessesas e aaaeaaaaaaenees 3
Licensed PremisSes HIStOrY ............uiiiiii e 4
Enforcement Visit: 04 April 2024 ..........ccoooi oo 5
Enforcement Visit: 18 JUly 2025........ oo 9
ReEASONS fOr REVIEW ... e 10
OULCOME SOUGNL ... . 11
Appendix — Supporting EVIAENCE ..........ovvvuiiiiiiiee e 12



Page 36

Case Summary

On 18 July 2025, officers from North West ICE visited Todays Extra, 78 Albert Road,
Widnes, WAS8 6JT for a second time where one illegal worker was encountered.
This was a multi-agency visit, North West ICE were accompanied by the police and
licensing officers from Halton Borough Council.

The premises was also visited on 04 April 2024 (three illegal workers). lllegal
working has been a constant theme throughout the two visits, there have been a
total of four illegal workers encountered at the premises.

Civil Penalty - 04 April 2024 Enforcement Visit

A £120,000 civil penalty was issued to Red Cherry Retail Ltd on 07 May 2024 for
employing two individuals who had no right-to-work in the UK and for employing a
third in breach of visa restrictions.

Red Cherry Retail Ltd objected to the penalty. The case was reconsidered, and on
23 July 2024 it was decided to maintain the penalty at £120,000. Red Cherry Retail
Ltd then submitted further evidence. The case was reconsidered, and on 13
September 2024 the penalty was maintained at the same level.

Although a formal instalment plan has not been arranged, some payments have
been made. The most recent payment was made on 06 August 2025. £110,000 of
the civil penalty remains outstanding.

An application was made for Red Cherry Retail Ltd to be compulsory struck off from
Companies House on 24 September 2024. The Civil Penalties Team objected to
this, and the application was suspended. A new application was discontinued on 08
March 2025. A new application was made for Red Cherry Retail Ltd to be
compulsory struck off from Companies House on 01 July 2025. Civil Penalties
objected to this again and the application was suspended. The application was
discontinued on 19 July 2025.

Civil Penalty - 18 July 2025 Enforcement Visit

A referral has been sent to Civil Penalty Compliance Team and is currently awaiting
consideration.



Page 37

Licensed Premises History

The premises licence number is LPA0436 issued by Halton Borough Council and is
held by Diamond 8 Retail Ltd. Dinesh FERNANDO is listed as the DPS with
personal licence number PA061929 issued by Liverpool Council.

The premises licence was originally issued on 18 January 2021, there has been a
change of the premises licence holder from Red Cherry Retail Ltd to Diamond 8
Retail Ltd, the date of change was the 19 June 2025.

Todays Extra is listed on Companies House under the trading name Red Cherry
Retail Ltd. The company registration number is 09119784. Companies House
shows that Red Cherry Retail Ltd was incorporated on 07 July 2014, is currently
active and Dinesh FERNANDO s listed as the director who was appointed on 01
January 2024.

Companies House records show that Diamond 8 Retail with company registration
number 15732649 was incorporated on 21 May 2024. This is currently active with
Warnakulasuriya Nicola Nancy FERNANDO listed as the company director.
Records show that Dinesh FERNANDO was listed as a person with significant
control, but these rights were ceased on 19 June 2024.

In summary, two limited companies have an interest in this premises. Dinesh
FERNANDO has connections to both.

The premises is licensed for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises
only between:

Monday to Thursday 6:00am — Midnight

Friday and Saturday 6:00am — 1:00am

Sunday 6:00am - Midnight

The premises is licensed for sale of late-night refreshments between:
Monday to Thursday 11:00pm — Midnight

Friday and Saturday 11:00am — 1:00am

Sunday 11:00pm — Midnight



Page 38

Enforcement Visit: 04 April 2024

Entry was gained to the premises at approximately 15:15 under Section 179 of the
Licensing Act 2003. Upon entering, immigration officers encountered the following
individuals, who were identified as working illegally and arrested,

As officers gained entry was encountered working in the storage area, he
was wearing a uniform at the time and attempted to evade officers by exiting via the
rear shutter.

I cncountered in uniform

An illegal working interview was conducted with the assistance of an interpreter.
I stated he had worked at the premises for approximately four months,
undertaking duties such as floor work and tasks in the storage room. |
claimed he works four days per week, five hours each day, under instructions from
manager, |l Bl stated he was paid in cash at a rate of £6.50 per hour.
I confirmed that no checks were made regarding right-to-work or immigration
status prior to employment. When questioned whether the employer was aware of
his lack of work permission, il indicated that Jjjjij had requested identification,
which he was unable to provide.

Home Office checks showed il entered the UK in April 2022 and claimed for
protection. His claim was withdrawn due to noncompliance in September 2023. No
outstanding application at the time of the enforcement visit. JJJilij has never held
the right to work in the UK.



Page 39

Upon gaining entry, |GGG \/2S encountered
working behind the till serving customers. It must be noted |GG

I \V2s wearing a uniform when encountered.

I, ©rcountered in uniform.

An llegal working interview was conducted with
. He admitted working at the premises for nine months. His
primary duties involved serving customers behind the till. |
stated that he typically works Monday to Saturday, averaging
seven to eight hours per day. NG c'aimed his
working schedule remained mostly consistent week to week, and that he is given
occasional time off when needed.

When asked who provided him with the job, he identified Dinesh, the manager, as
the person responsible. Dinesh also determined the days and hours required to
work. Daily tasks and duties were assigned by any manager on shift.

I steted he was paid in cash weekly,

receiving £6.50 per hour.

Regarding right-to-work checks, | INNNNNNGgNEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE claimed to
have shown his Application Registration Card (ARC) indicating that work is
permitted under the Shortage Occupation List.

Home Office checks showed entered the

UK on a visit visa issued in July 2019. He then claimed for protection in October
2021, with an outcome pending at the time of the enforcement visit.

I b2l conditions did not permit him to work

6



Page 40

outside of the Shortage occupation List. The Shortage Occupation List (SOL),
replaced by the Immigration Salary List (ISL) in 2025, identifies jobs where there is
a recognised shortage of skilled workers. Working as a shop assistant is not on this

list. I \vas found working in breach of bail

conditions.

As immigration officers gained entry |l Was encountered in a back
storeroom located at the premises. It must be noted | \as wearing a
uniform at the time of the encounter.

Home Office checks showed prior to the enforcement visit date there was no record
of I o any Home Office databases. During his arrest || c'aimed
he entered the UK illegally via Ireland, after entering Ireland in 2023 on a seaman’s
visa. I \as an illegal entrant in to the UK and did not hold any right to
work.

Dinesh FERNANDO - Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS)

An illegal working interview was conducted with FERNANDO after he identified
himself as the director of the premises. FERNANDO stated he has held the position
of director since January 2024 and had been managing the business since its
opening in 2022.

When asked about staff payments, FERNANDO confirmed that he pays all
employees, and they are paid weekly in cash. FERNANDO was questioned in
relation to all three illegal workers.

FERNANDO stated N ad worked at the
premises for approximately six months. He is paid £7.50 per hour, working six days
a week for eight hours each day. FERNANDO stated that he requested identification
from I 2d was shown a BRP card which
indicated that work was permitted. However, no further right-to-work checks were
conducted to verify conditions or authenticity of the BRP, FERNANDO also admitted
he was unaware of the Shortage Occupation List.

FERNANDO stated |l has also been working at the premises for around
six months. He receives the same rate of pay—£7.50 per hour—and works the
same schedule as N His wages are paid
weekly in cash. FERNANDO confirmed that |l rresented an Indian
passport as proof of identity, and no further checks were conducted to confirm his
right-to-work in the UK.

FERNANDO stated il had worked at the premises for approximately eight
months. He is paid £7.50 per hour, working six days a week for eight hours a day,
with payments made weekly in cash. FERNANDO stated that [jjjjilij rrovided an

7



Page 41

Indian passport as identification. When asked whether he was aware that

and JJl are not permitted to work in the UK, FERNANDO responded
that he had only checked their passports and did not conduct any right to work
checks.



Page 42

Enforcement Visit: 18 July 2025

Entry was gained to the premises at approximately 12:15 under fully informed
consent. Upon entering, immigration officers encountered the following individual,
who was identified as working illegally and arrested.

As immigration officers gained entry, |l \Vas observed working behind the
counter serving customers.

An illegal working interview was conducted with | lllll- She stated she had
only worked at the premises for two weeks, working 2 days per week and being paid
£7 per hour. She stated that no right to work checks were conducted prior to
commencing work. |l initially claimed to be working for her sponsor
Nannyeze Ltd Monday to Thursday and earning £27,492 per year. However, when
immigration officers requested proof of wages by her sponsored role she was
unable to do so. Upon further questioning |l 2dmitted that she had never
worked for her sponsor Nannyeze Ltd and had simply paid the company to provide
her with a visa. | 2!sc stated that she entered the UK fully aware that she
would not be working for her sponsor.

Home Office checks showed |l entered the UK on a skilled worker visa
valid March 2024 to March 2027. | skilled worker visa was sponsored
by Nannyeze Ltd. A skilled worker visa entitles the holder to undertake
supplementary work up to 20 hours a week in another job, as long as the holder is
still working for the job they are sponsored for. As |l had never worked for
her sponsor, she was found working in breach of visa conditions.

Dinesh FERNANDO - Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS)

FERNANDO identified himself as the main person in charge of the shop. He
confirmed that he offered || the opportunity to train there.

During the employer interview FERNANDO claimed || \vas not working at
the premises but was undergoing training. FERNANDO stated | Vas a
working as a teacher and mentioned she was permitted to work 20 hours per week
outside her primary teaching role. FERNANDO confirmed that || \vas not
paid or received any form of remuneration for her work at the premises. Her work
duties primarily involve working on the till and occasionally assisting on the shop
floor. FERNANDO stated | attendance varies, typically ranging from four
to five hours at a time. FERNANDO stated he had seen |Jlllls documentation,
including her passport, visa and BRP card, which indicated she is allowed to work
in a secondary role.



Page 43

Reasons for Review

Section 36 and Schedule 4 of the Immigration Act 2016 amended the Licensing Act
2003 to introduce immigration safeguards in respect of licensing applications made
in England and Wales on or after 06 April 2017. The intention is to prevent illegal
working in premises licensed for the sale of alcohol or late-night refreshment.

There was a total of 4 illegal workers encountered at the premises over 2
enforcement visits. In this case the DPS confirmed that all four individuals were
either working or training at the premises. If the employer had conducted a simple
right to work check they could’ve easily established that all four workers did not hold
the relevant right to work.

Whether by negligence or wilful blindness illegal workers were engaged in activity
on the premises, yet it is a simple process for an employer to ascertain what
documents they should check before a person can work. All employers are
dutybound by law to conduct these checks, and guidance can be found on the
GOV.UK website or by using a search engine. Additional information on how to
conduct these checks is available online, this includes the Home Office’s official
YouTube page. It is an offence to work when a person is disqualified to do so, and
such an offence can only be committed with the co-operation of a premises licence
holder or its agents. It is also an offence to employ illegal workers where there is
reason to believe this is the case.

It must be noted that the employer admitted paying workers £7.50 per hour, in cash.
Which is below the minimum wage at the time, which was £11.44 per hour. It is also
considered that no income tax or national insurance contributions were being made.
Such practices not only exploit workers but also provide an unfair competitive
advantage over businesses that adhere to wage regulations. The payment of below-
minimum wages raises serious questions about the licence holder's commitment to
lawful and ethical employment practices.

Section 182 guidance at point 11.27 states that certain activity should be treated
particularly seriously, and this includes employing someone who is disqualified from
that work by reason of their immigration status in the UK. 11.28 of the guidance
states that it is expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance —
should be seriously considered.

Immigration Enforcement submits that for commercial reasons those engaged in the
management of the premises employed illegal workers and a warning or other
activity falling short of a review is inappropriate; therefore, Immigration Enforcement
has proceeded to review.

10



Page 44

Outcome Sought

The objective of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) is to provide a clear, transparent
framework for making decisions about applications by individuals or businesses
wishing to sell or supply alcohol or provide certain types of regulated entertainment
and late-night refreshment.

There are four licensing objectives which underpin the Act, and which need to be
taken into account and promoted throughout the licensing process.

The licensing objectives are:

+ the prevention of crime and disorder
* public safety

» the prevention of public nuisance and
» the protection of children from harm.

Todays Extra under the control of Diamond 8 Retail Ltd and FERNANDO has been
found employing illegal workers. This business has clearly failed to meet the
prevention of crime and disorder and public safety objectives. The licence
holder/DPS would have been aware of his responsibilities to uphold the licensing
objectives as they are clearly defined as part of the premises licence application.

Immigration Enforcement has submitted that the licence holder and its agents
repeatedly failed to conduct right to work checks prior to commencing employment.

Immigration Enforcement asks that the premises licence is revoked.

Merely remedying the existing situation (for instance by the imposition of additional
conditions or a suspension) is insufficient to act as a deterrent to the licence holder
and other premises’ licence holders from employing illegal workers and facilitating
disqualified immigrants to work illegally.

This submission and appended documents provide the licensing subcommittee with
background arguments and information pertinent to that contention. These provide
the sub-committee with a sound and defensible rationale as to why it should revoke
the licence.

11



Page 45

Appendix — Supporting Evidence



Page 46
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Encounter

Details

Type of work Visit

Visit reference s

Created by |_

ProntolD ]

Time 15:26

Created at geolocation Easting 351952
Northing 386125

Creation date

04-04-2024 15:34:53

Main Identity

Identity sourceltype Biographic
Full name e
Date of hirth |_
Gender l-
Nationality -

Country of birth

Place of birth

Languages

Languages spoken Tamil
Interpreter used? Yes
Interpreter details e

Does the individual understand the Yes
interpreter?

Encounter

Encountering officer ]
Is this encounter related to a Small No

Boats event?

Is this person the subject of the visit? |No

Prior to Schedule 2 examination, did |Yes

you suspect an Immigration Offence?

Why do you suspect the person of an |illegal working
immigration offence?

Where was the person located? Working in the storage area

Printed 11/8/2025 at 13:59

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 1 of 4



Page 47

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Declared immigration status

Asylum

How and when did the subject last
enter the UK?

21 Apr 2022, seamen document

CIDPID/ICEPR -
Are there any vulnerabilities/ No
trafficking/safeguarding issues?

Are you taking enforcement action? Yes

References (Person ID, HO Ref, Port
Ref, BRP)

Biographic search results

Systems checked
Result of checks

Does the person have
an open absconder
status on Atlas Person
Alerts?

Status returned by
system checks

Person Check, Atlas
Match, asylum seeker
No

Photo of Subject

Do you want to take a photograph of
the subject?

Yes

Powers used

Paragraph 18(2) Schedule 2 Immigration Act 1971

Printed 11/8/2025 at 13:59

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 2 of 4




Page 48
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Photo of subject

subject

Identity Documentation

Document 1

Identity

Document type
Document reference
Issuing authority
Document issue date
Document expiry date

Country of issue (if
different from
nationality above)

Is the person the
rightful holder of the
document?

Is the document
falsified?

Is the document in the
possession of the Home
Office?

Suspected fraudulent

In transit details

Printed 11/8/2025 at 13:59

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 3 of 4



Page 49
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Photos

Notes

No notes entered.

Management Checks Complete

Date management checks complete 08-04-2024 10:19:58

Reviewer(s) .

Printed 11/8/2025 at 13:59 OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 4 of 4



Page 50
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

lllegal Working - Employee

Details

Type of work Visit

Visit reference s

Created by |

ProntolD I

Subject CIDPID/CEPR |-

Subject name |_

Subject DOB _

Subject gender Male

Subject nationality India

Time 15:56

Created at geolocation Easting 351943
Northing 386178

Creation date

04-04-2024 15:56:30

Language of Interview

this business?

What language is the interview carried | Tamil
out in?

Interpreter used? Yes
Details of interpreter e
Does the individual understand the Yes
interpreter?

Obligation

How long have you been working at |4 months

What is your job role/ what are your
duties?

Floor work, working in the storage room

What days/ hours do you work each
week?

4 days a week, 5 hours each day

Control

each day?

Who tells you what tasks/ duties to do |||

Remuneration

how much are you paid?

6.50

Who pays you?

The managerjjjj]

Printed 11/8/2025 at 14:14

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 1 of 3



Page 51
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

How are you paid (money, Cash
accommodation, food)?
Pre-employment Checks

Did the employer check your right to |No

work or immigration status before
they offered you the job?

Does your employer know you're not
allowed to work in the UK?

He asked me for id but | have none, I'm not sure if he knows

Additional Questions

No details provided.

Photographs

No photographs.

Declaration

I confirm that | have understood all the questions and that the details are true and correct.

Interviewee signature ||| N

04-04-2024 16:09:01

Observations

Observations

As member of immigration staff entered the storage area subject attempted to
leave via the rear shutter. Subject wearing uniform of the shop stood with
other workers

Do you suspect this person of illegal
working?

Yes

Printed 11/8/2025 at 14:14

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 2 of 3



Page 52
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Photo 1

Caption uniform and shutter attempted to escape from

Management Checks Complete

Date management checks complete 08-04-2024 10:22:40

Reviewer(s) —

Printed 11/8/2025 at 14:14 OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 3 of 3



Page 53
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Encounter

Details

Type of work Visit

Visit reference s

Created by

ProntolD I S Lerka

Time 15:32

Created at geolocation Easting 351929
Northing 386146

Creation date 04-04-2024 15:32:51

Main Identity

Identity sourceltype Declared

Full name —

Date of birth I

Gender Male

Nationality Sri Lanka

Country of birth

Place of birth

Languages

Languages spoken English

Interpreter used? No

Encounter

Encountering officer e

Is this encounter related to a Small No

Boats event?

Is this person the subject of the visit? |Yes

Where was the person located?

Today extra

Declared immigration status

Asylum appeal

How and when did the subject last
enter the UK?

29/11/2019 via plane

CIDPID/CEPR ]
Are there any vulnerabilities/ No
trafficking/safeguarding issues?

Are you taking enforcement action? Yes

Printed 13/8/2025 at 11:13

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 1 of 3



Page 54
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

References (Person ID, HO Ref, Port |-

Ref, BRP)

Biographic search results

Systems checked Person Check
Result of checks

Does the person have No
an open absconder

status on Atlas Person
Alerts?

Status returned by
system checks

Photo of Subject

Do you want to take a photograph of
the subject?

Yes

Powers used

Paragraph 18(2) Schedule 2 Immigration Act 1971

Photo of subject

-

Identity Documentation

Document 1

Identity
Document type
Document reference

Issuing authority

Printed 13/8/2025 at 11:13

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 2 of 3



Page 55
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Document issue date
Document expiry date

Country of issue (if
different from
nationality above)

Is the person the
rightful holder of the
document?

Is the document
falsified?

Is the document in the
possession of the Home
Office?

Suspected fraudulent
In transit details

Photos

Notes

No notes entered.

Printed 13/8/2025 at 11:13

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 3 of 3



Page 56
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

lllegal Working - Employee

Details
Type of work Visit
Visit reference s
Created by I
ProntolD - ===
Subject CIDPID/CEPR Unknown
Subject name -
Subject DOB _
Subject gender Male
Subject nationality Sri Lanka
Time 15:44
Created at geolocation Easting 351927
Northing 386132

Creation date

04-04-2024 15:43:56

Language of Interview

What language is the interview carried
out in?

English

Interpreter used?

No

Obligation

How long have you been working at
this business?

July 2023- 9 months

What is your job role/ what are your
duties?

Serving customers behind the till

What days/ hours do you work each
week?

Monday to Saturday, 7-8 hours a day

Do you work the same hours/ days
every week?

Yes, I'm given rime off when I need time off

Control

Who gave you this job (name and role
in business)?

Denesh the manager

Who tells you what days/ hours to
work?

Denesh the manager

Who tells you what tasks/ duties to do
each day?

Any manager who is on shift influsong the female manager i}

Printed 13/8/2025 at 14:14

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 1 of 3



Page 57
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Remuneration

How are you paid (money,
accommodation, food)?

Cash in hand

If money, how much and how do you
receive it?

Paid weekly. Gates paid £6.50 per hour

Who pays you?

The managers, |||}

Do you pay income tax or have a
National Insurance number?

No

Pre-employment Checks

Did the employer check your right to
work or immigration status before
they offered you the job?

| ahowm them my cars- work permitted- shortage occupants list.

Does your employer know you're not
allowed to work in the UK?

Nobody have said anything to me so i don't know.

who gave you your uniform

are you forced to work here?

No

are you happy to work here and you
are treated well?

Yes

Additional Questions

No details provided.

Photographs

No photographs.

Declaration

| confirm that | have understood all the questions and that the details are true and correct.

Interviewee signature ([ G

04-04-2024 15:57:19

Printed 13/8/2025 at 14:14

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 2 of 3



Page 58
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Observations

Observations Was observed serving customers behind the country in entry.

Do you suspect this person of illegal |Yes
working?

Photo 1

Caption work uniform.

Printed 13/8/2025 at 14:14 OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 3 of 3




Page 59
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Arrest

Details

Type of work

Visit

Visit reference

Created by C
Address Today’s Extra , 78, Albert Road, Widnes, WA8 6JT (Visit Address)
ProntolD C I

Subject CIDPID/ICEPR

Subject name

Subject DOB

Subject gender Male

Subject nationality India

Created at geolocation Easting 351935
Northing 386151

Creation date

04-04-2024 15:40:35

Arrest Details

Time of arrest

15:30

Power of arrest

Paragraph 17(1) Schedule 2 Immigration Act 1971

Arresting officer

Reason for arrest

lllegal entrant (EWOL)

Grounds for arrest explained to
subject?

Yes

Caution administered

Administrative caution

Confirm subject understood caution? |Yes
Notes

Search of Person

Subject searched Yes
Did you search the subject? Yes

Power used for search

Paragraph 25B Schedule 2 Immigration Act 1971

Justification

This male was located in a back stockroom and upon arrest he states he had
a Stanley knife in his pocket a search was carried out to ensure he had no
articles that could cause harm to myself or him or aid escape.

Items found

No

Printed 11/8/2025 at 13:08

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 1 of 2



Page 60
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Outcome After Arrest

Outcome Bail

Details of bail restrictions, including  |No work must report 17.04 @ the capital. Home address is ||| | | | | N SN
address

Bail authorised by ]

Notes

No notes entered.

Management Checks Complete

Date management checks complete 07-05-2024 11:07:29

Reviewer(s) C

Printed 11/8/2025 at 13:08 OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 2 of 2




Page 61
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

lllegal Working - Employer

Details

Type of work Visit

Visit reference s

Created by ]

ProntolD Dinesh Fernando JJij - British Citizen

Subject CIDPIDICEPR

Unknown

Employer Dinesh Fernando
Subject DOB _
Subject gender Male

Subject nationality

British Citizen

Time 15:55
Created at geolocation Easting 351923
Northing 386148

Creation date

04-04-2024 15:55:24

Language of Interview

What language is the interview carried | English
out in?
Interpreter used? No

Employer Details

What is your position here at Todays
Extra?

| am the director since January 2024

What is the name of the business?

It is named as Red Cherry Retail Ltd

How long have you worked here as a
manager?

Since 2022 when it opended

Who pays the staff who work here?

They get paid every week in cash, | pay them

How long has [JJjj worked here at
Todays Extra?

About 6 months

How did he get the job?

One of his friends asked me if he could have a job.

How much does [ get paid?

£7.50 an hour. 6 days a week 8 hours a day

Did you ask i for any ID when he
started?

Yes he showed me his BRP, it said work permitted.

Did you do any further checks on the
ID provided?

No, | seen it said work permitted. | didn't realise there was shortage
occupation list

Printed 18/8/2025 at 9:33

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 1 of 2



Page 62
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

How long has ] worked at
Todays Extra?

About 6 months

How did ] oet the job here?

Through a friend

How much does ] oet raid?

£7.50 an hour. 6 days a week. 8 hours a day

How often is [ raid?

Every week in cash, | pay him

Did you ask [ for any 1D?

He just showed me his Indian Passport

How long has [JjjJjjj] worked here at
Todays Extra?

About 7/8 months

How much is [ paid?

£7.50 an hour. 6 days a week. 8 hours a day.

Did you ask [JJjjjj for any ID to prove
he can work in the UK?

Just his Indian passport

Are you aware that ||| N 2r<

not allowed to work?

| just checked their passport, that's it

How often is [ paid?

At the end of every week | pay them in cash

Declaration by Employer

I confirm that | have understood all the questions and that the details are true and correct.

Signed by Dinesh Fernando

04-04-2024 16:10:14

Observations

Observations

Management Checks Complete

Date management checks complete

08-04-2024 09:37:09

Reviewer(s)

Printed 18/8/2025 at 9:33

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 2 of 2



Page 63
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Encounter

Details

Type of work

Visit

Visit reference

Created by |_

ProntolD I - S'i Lanka

Time 10:15

Created at geolocation Easting 351936
Northing 386146

Creation date

18-07-2025 10:43:51

Chosen Identity

Identity sourceltype

Declared

Name C
poB C
Gender Female
Nationality Sri Lanka

Country of birth Sri Lanka

Place of birth

Languages

Languages spoken English

Interpreter used? No

Encounter

Encountering officer

Is this encounter related to a Small No
Boats event?

Is this person the subject of the visit? |No
Prior to Schedule 2 examination, did |Yes

you suspect an Immigration Offence?

Why do you suspect the person of an

immigration offence?

Female encountered in the kitchen area of the premises working, and due to
Op with licensing and police, | was asked to carry out HO checks to ascertain
immigration status as police intel suspects immigration offenders.

Where was the person located?

Working behind the counter

Declared immigration status

States she has skilled worker visa.

How and when did the subject last
enter the UK?

April 2024

Printed 11/8/2025 at 9:59

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 1 of 3



Page 64
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Are there any vulnerabilities/ No
trafficking/safeguarding issues?
Are you taking enforcement action? |Yes

References (Person ID, HO Ref, Port
Ref, BRP)

Biographic search results

Systems checked
Result of checks

Does the person have No
an open absconder

status on Atlas Person
Alerts?

Status returned by
system checks

Photo of Subject

Do you want to take a photograph of
the subject?

Yes

Powers used

Paragraph 18(2) Schedule 2 Immigration Act 1971

Photo of subject

pic 1

Printed 11/8/2025 at 9:59

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 2 of 3



Page 65
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Identity Documentation

No documentation provided.

Notes

HO checks confirm female is not worming for named sponsor and COS checks show that this has been stopped.

Printed 11/8/2025 at 9:59 OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 3 of 3



Page 66
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

lllegal Working - Employee

Details

Type of work Visit

Visit reference ]
Created by I

ProntolD =

Subject CIDPID/CEPR Unknown

Subject name ]

Subject DOB _

Subject gender Female

Subject nationality Sri Lanka

Subject country of birth Sri Lanka

Time 10:48

Created at geolocation Easting 351936
Northing 386144

Creation date 18-07-2025 10:48:42

Language of Interview

What language is the interview carried | English
out in?

Interpreter used? No

Obligation

When did your sponsor or license get |It has been revoked.
revoked from Nanyeze?

Our systems show that it has been As far as | am aware it hasn't.
revoked.
How often to you work? | work at Nanyeze Monday to Thursday, i travel to London every week to

attend work

Checks carried out now confirm that |OK, | will drop out and not work here anymore.
you are not allowed to be working at
this premises.

How much do you get paid to work at |£27,492 per year.
Nanyeze?

How much do you get paid to work at (I have been paid £7 per hour as | am training.
Today's Extra?

How often do you go to this business || have worked here 2 weeks only and 2 days per week.
premises?

Printed 11/8/2025 at 10:01 OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 1 of 2



Page 67
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Control

Who tells you your duties at this
shop?

I e manager.

Remuneration

Who pays you?

Pre-employment Checks

Did the employer check your right to
work or immigration status before
they offered you the job?

No she didn't.

Additional Questions

No details provided.

Photographs

No photographs.

Declaration

I confirm that | have understood all the questions and that the details are true and correct.

Interviewee signature (N

18-07-2025 10:59:20

Observations

Observations

Female encountered serving customers 6 claims to have worked at the shop
for 2 weeks receive money of £7 per hour. Female states that she still works
for Nanyeze in London but HO systems confirmed that this license is revoked.

Do you suspect this person of illegal
working?

Yes

Printed 11/8/2025 at 10:01

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 2 of 2



Page 68
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Q&A

Details

Type of work Visit

Visit reference ]

Created by I

ProntolD [ |ESUHIELE
Subject CIDPID/CEPR Unknown

Subject name ]

Subject DOB _

Subject gender Female

Subject nationality Sri Lanka

Subject country of birth Sri Lanka

Time 11:09

Created at geolocation Easting 351938
Northing 386143

Creation date 18-07-2025 11:09:46

Language of Interview

What language is the interview carried | English
out in?

Interpreter used? No

Q&A
Can you please show me proof of Yes (opens her banking app to show|j )

payments to your account for your
wages?

The acc shows no relevant amounts in|Yes, (states blankly at her phone).
relation to £1987.41 which toy state is
your wage, being paid into this
account, is this the account you get
paid into?

So it is safe to say that you have No | have never worked at Nanyeze.
never worked at Nanyeze, given that
there are no payments from them into
your account since you came to the
UK?

So did you pay this company to set Yes | did.
you up with a Visa?

Printed 11/8/2025 at 10:02 OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 1 of 2



Page 69
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

UK if you haven't been working for
Nanyeze and, as you state, only been
working at Today's Extra for 2 weeks.

So how do you support yourself in the | My husband supports me.

Where does he work? He works at Today's Extra with me.

Declaration

Interviewee signature ([
)

18-07-2025 11:26:31

Printed 11/8/2025 at 10:02

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 2 of 2



Page 70
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Q&A

Details

Type of work Visit

Visit reference ]

Created by I

ProntolD [ |ESUHIELE

Subject CIDPID/CEPR Unknown

Subject name ]

Subject DOB _

Subject gender Female

Subject nationality Sri Lanka

Subject country of birth Sri Lanka

Time 11:15

Created at geolocation Easting 351938
Northing 386144

Creation date

18-07-2025 12:03:00

Language of Interview

What language is the interview carried
out in?

Eastern Frisian

Interpreter used?

No

Q&A

Did you enter the UK knowing that
you would not be working for
Nanyeze?

Yes | knew.

Declaration

Subject has refused to provide a signature.

Interviewee read the contents of the
interview themselves

Yes

Contents read back in the language
used during the interview

Yes

Printed 11/8/2025 at 10:02

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Page 1 of 1



Page 71
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

lllegal Working - Employer

Details

Type of work

Visit

Visit reference

Created by
ProntolD Other
Subject CIDPID/CEPR Unknown

Employer Dinesh Fernando

Time 11:39

Created at geolocation Easting 380396
Northing 397707

Creation date

18-07-2025 15:32:32

Language of Interview

What language is the interview carried | English
out in?
Interpreter used? No

Employer Details

how long has she been working here ([ ll is not working she's just training. She said she is working

somewhere else so just wants to train. She's working as a teacher but has
said to she has experience from Tesco. | think she is legally to be working and
allowed to work 20 hours outside of her role as a teacher

what's your role in this shop

| am the main manager

does [ ot paid for the

training

No [l coes not get paid for the training

what hours does_ work

I ' orks maximum 20 hours. She's not working she is training

who gave |l the iob

| gave her the job

How many hours does ||| ]

work

Sometimes she's here 4/5 hours but that changes

does she receive anything for this
training, such as food or money

No she does not get money or food. Mostly she is on the till but sometimes on
the shop floor

does she open the shop

No.

who opens thd shop.

The lady on the till

does she and her husband come in
together

No he works in the afternoon

what does her husband do in the shop

Stock taking and filling shelves

Printed 11/8/2025 at 12:55

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 1 of 2



Page 72
OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

did you check her paper work to see if
she is allowed to work

Yes | did. Her paperwork said she can wwork as a teacher and additional 20
hours anywhere else

what does she teach

| don't know, I've not bothered to ask

what paper work did she specifically
show you

Passport and I'm not sure if she brought in any other paperwork. | think she
brought in her visa

did she bring in a paper visa

Yes she did and she also had the brp card

did you interview her

Just had a brief chat about her experience

did you thourOughly checked through
the docs she provided

| just checked the docs she provided.

would you like us to read through all
the questions we have asked and your
answers

No it's ok

are you OK for us to sign it as you are
not here

Yes | am happy for you to sign it

Declaration by Employer

I confirm that | have understood all the questions and that the details are true and correct.

Subject has refused to provide a signature.

Employer read the contents of the No
interview themselves
Contents read back to the employer in |No

the language used during the
interview

Observations

Observations

Employer was asked whether he would like us to read or send him a copy of
the interview as the intervoew was conducted over the phone. The employer
advised no it is OK employer was asked, in that case is he happy for us to
sign it on his behalf, to which he replied yes he is happy with that.

Printed 11/8/2025 at 12:55

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE Page 2 of 2




Page 73

APPENDIX D
HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
Représantation Form.
Reaponzible Authority.
POLICE
Your Nams _Lesiey Haillda, — e )
_Job Title _ __| Police Licsnsing Officer
Postal and smail address Warrington Police Station,
Charles Stewart House,
55 Musaum Street. Warrington, WA1 INE
_Contact telaphons number fﬁ___ I_ ]
“Name of the premises you are __ 7
making a representation about. Today's Extrs. :
"Address of the premises you sre | o
making a representation about. 78 Albert Rowd, Widnas, WAS &JT
"Which of the four licensing | Yes 'Pmuhﬁﬁaﬁdwmwmmmmmfiﬁaﬁ.”
Objectives doas your Or | Or the reason for your representation.
representation rolate to? Plesse No  Pleass use saparate sheets If necessary
_state yes o no. 1 o '

| The Prevention of harm fo chiidren l ,

< o

' To prevent Public Nulsancs | I—

l To prevent crime and disorder | Yes [ See beiow

Suggeated conditions that couid be = Ses Below:

added to the licence to remady

your represantaiion or other

suggestians you would i the

!mmmcnmmwm |

linhl:ehwhore u..nd , |
necessary and refer

to checkiist.



Page 74

COMMENTS:

On behalf of Cheshire Police, 1 am writing & support the review of the premises licence in
reepect of the premises known as Today's Extra, 76 Albert Road, Wkines, WAS &JT.

Officers from Cheshire Constabulary were presant during the visit on Friday 18® July 2025 as
they were conducting a lloenaing compliance visit whilst home offios Immigration enforcement

afﬂcmmn-lodMhslruhedmmmemmpmontandwuﬂdmauhemmm

Officers entered the pramises under Section 179 of the liceneing act 2003 which grants police
and authorised peraone 1o enter the premises to Investigate Nicansable activities and potentis)

There were a number of compliance concerns identifled during the visit all of which would
constitute & Section 138 offences under the licansing act 2003, which also undermine the

licansing abjective of prevention of crime and disorder.

Conditions attached to @ premises licence dictate how the premises can operate and as such
they are legally binding.

The definition of 2 Section 138 offence under the licensing act 2003:

It Is an offence to carry on or attempt to camy on a licensable activity on or from any premises
other then undorandhleeuldmwlmmnuhorlnﬂon.Amon guilty of this offence Is llable

to be imprisoned for up to 8 months and/or an unimiisd fine.

During the visit police offioars spoke to the DPS Dinesh FERNANDO to request the password
for the CCTV to aliow tham to review the footage to assist with immigration anforcement
investigation. The DPS was obstructive and would/could not provide the password to allow the
police officer to view the footage. Under Section 170 of the licensing act, It (s an offence to
intentionally obstruct & pollce officer or an authariasd person from exercising their powers.

TheLleemlngMtﬁﬂ&uhoﬂthelunﬂngudmoforﬂnubmdaupplydnm.the
provision of entertainment and the pravision of lats-night refreshment In Engiand & Wales.
Socﬂonaool'muutlnd&heduloﬂchlmmlgruﬂanAetﬁOandu 2003 Act and
introduces immigration safeguards in respect of llosnaing epplications made In England or
Walee on or aftsr the @ April 2017. The Inhnﬂonhlopmntllhgulmﬂdnghmm
Kcensad for the sale of alcohol ar {ate-night refreshment.

Themtnmypmvenﬂoncferlmob]ommhmmnndudnh prevention of
Immigrafion crime and the prevention of lllegal working In llcensed premises.

There are further concerna regarding the worieers who have been found to be working at the
premises uniawfully as they have been pald below the minimum wage for staf? employed In the
United Kingdom and they have bsen psid In cash, ec [t Is suspectad that no tax or national
Insurance haa baen paid with regards fo these people, whompahnﬂnlvlclhnofmodumdw

slavery offences,

The Constabulary therefore supports the Home Office Immigration review application which
seeks revocation of the premisss licence.

Wa would concur that this Is the only option to effectively deal with the issues identified as the
addltion of any new conditions on the licance would Ikkely have Iittle or no effect on how the

business s operated due to the biatant disragard the premises licence holder and DPS has



Page 75

already demonstrated forﬂnvarlounphenofbgblaﬂonmmoyare bound by when operating
a licensed premises (Licensing Act 2003) and the lawful amployment of staff.

The following documents are submitted to support this representation.
MG11 = PC Durkin

MG11 x 2 - Lesiey Hallday Licensing Officer
Exhibite LH1, LH2, LH3 and LH4

Signed: Date: 12/06/2023



Page 76

Restricted (when completed)

_ Cheshire Constabulary -
| . _ WITNESS STATEMENT e e
Criminal Procssur: Rulec, 16.2; Criminal Justios Aot 1967, 5. 9; Wiaghtrstse? Courts Act 1880, 5.65
URN: o7 '
- - —_— i — -

(———

Statement of: H_OLLIBD{T-RKIN -
A0k undor 18 Mo tmr'owe . O16 Oocipetion; Polos Gorsinl

This statoment (conslating of 4. page(s) each signes by the) Ia irue o the beat of my knowiedge and beliefand |
mumm‘mw"ﬁm-ﬁ#&mnlmlbgoluglmmummm"amrmn:mumml

which | know to be faise, or do not belleve o be trus,
Signature: H.DURKIN Deta:  22/08/25
l' Check box If witness svidence le visuslly recorded [ Witness personal detalls should be entered in |
o B - _lpmpmhucbnml._v. -
- - I

- I
" | am the above named officer and | am stationed at WARRINGTON POLICE STATION. l’
, currently work on the Warrington Licensing Team and | am making this statement In relation to

TODAY'S EXTRA, ALBERT ROAD, WIDNES, WAS6JT. ,

At epproximatiey 12:15 hours on FRIDAY 18% JULY 2025 | ettended TODAY'S EXTRA with
, Police Licensing Officar Lesley HALLIDAY in orderta complets a licansing complience visit. We '
aiso attended with Halton Borough Council and Immigration Enforcement Officers who were

, compieting immigration checks. l

On entering TODAY'S EXTRA we located three staff members. Immigration Officers completed |
' relevant checks on the persons present and Identified that staff membe
was working behind the courtar serving customers, which was In breach of her viss conditions. |
, immigration officers spoks to B s private setting In the rear of stors, where the stock
was heid. | was present during the interaction between Immigration Officers and [N |
| Throughout the conversation It was clear that I ~2s changing her answers or failing
|

fo answer qussitons. ,
In order to asalst the Immigration Officers In dentifying how iong I had worked at

l TODAY'S EXTRA, | went to the counter and asked the serving staff member If | could view their
CCTV. | would describe this staff member as White British female, avergae height and[

Signature: Signaturs Wl!m-ud_By:
Restricted (when completed)




Page 77

Restricted (when completad)
_Cheshire Constabulary ’

WWTNI_ESS_S_ STATEMENT
crlmlnnl Pmenduro Rul@e. 16.2; Criminal Justios Aot 1!@1. . 9 ﬁagkmm' Courts Aot 1680, =58
unn o7

‘approximatiey late 50’s. This staif member axplained that she did not know how to workp;l;z
CCTV system in the store and she did not have access to this CCTV system but showed ms a
 tablet device where | would be abie to view CCTV if ) could geln access. This staff member also
explained that no one that was cumently in the store could work or gain access fo the CCTVI
l system. | was Informed the Designatad Premises Supervisor (DPS) had access to the CCTV

but he was not currently in the store. l

l Within the Premises Licence Issued by HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL for TODAY'S EXTRA
It states 'A CCTV camera system capable of providing evidental quality images In all lighting
conditions shall be used covering the Interior and the immediate exterior {entrance) of the ghop,
Imagas will be retalned for a period of at least 28 days and be made avallable to the Pollce upon
roquest within a reasonabie time period'. It goss on to atate 'The CCTV recording equipment
shall be kept in & secure environment under the control of the premises licence holder (PLH)
and/or another named responsible individual'. Fallure to comply with such condltons would be ‘

a breach of TODAY'S EXTRA'S Premises Licence.

|
| re-entered the rear of the store and an immigration officer was on the phons to DPS Dinesh

FERNANDO.I took the phone form the officer and spoke to FERNANDO. | Identified myself as
& police officer and explained why | was spekaing to him. | asked FERNANDO for the password |
to the CCTV. | explained the urgency and Importance of what | belleved was a resonable
request. FERNANDO was extremely defensive from the outsst of our conversation and
 explained he could either not remember the password or did not know this. Again, | explained
the urgency of this request and FERNANDO falled to assit with this, FERNANDO expiained 1
needad fo go upstairs where the hardrive was to access CCTV as he did not know the password
to the tablet device.On entering a smali room upstalrs in TODAY'S EXTRA there was a large
hardrive in the comer of the room with wires surrounding It. Desplte this, there were no screens,
j No mouse or keyboard to view any CCTV footage. There was no reasonable way to access the
CCTV footage In this room. FERNANDO had falled to provide me with CCTV upon my request
and had been extremly defensive and dificult when asked simple questions. | belleve E

'smmmm: ' Signature Witnessed By: I_ - l
Restricted (when completed)




Page 78

Restricted (when completed)

[ Cheshire Constabu B

- - WITNESS STATEMENT ]

. Criminsi Prooedurs Rules, 18.2; Griminal Justios Aot 1967, c. 9; baghuirets® Courts Act 1660, &.08
URN: 07 |

— — : Paje

FERNANDO was activiey obstructing a constabie from carrying out their duty.

‘ Fortunstiey, on retuming downstairs my colieague from Hailton Borough Councll had galned
access to the live CCTV In the shop using the tabist device . He did this without the assistance

, of FERNANDO or any other staff member.

Ultimatiey there are four licensing objectives which underpin the Act, and which need to be '
‘ taken Into account and promoted throughout the licensing process.

The licensing objectives are:
* the prevention of crime and disorder

* public safety
’ » the prevention of public nulsance and
« the protection of children from harm |

! On FRIDAY 18™ JULY 2025 TODAY'S EXTRA was found employing lllegal workers, ultimaltey ,
falling to meat the prevention of cime and disorder and public safety objectives. Along with this

lDPs FERNANDO showed & biatant disregard to requests asked of him by a serving police
constable. The four licencing objectives are detalied on the Premises Licencs Issusd by

HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL and DPS FERNANDO has a responeibility to uphold these
! licansing objectives.

Dus to the above, | support Immigration Enforcments application for the rewlew of the premises
TODAY'S EXTRA. ALBERT ROAD, WIDENS, WABBJT.

S B - -

M1



Page 79

Pagslof3

GHESHIRE GONS'I' ABULARY

PREMISES: W m '.I g ExhbltM —

TR AT i A f%%lrdff;l’

|.—A_ddm
ES.
| E-Mak: W/M | Signature:
' Day: f;? [ /67 7 /gg-q Time Oommnmt[g-/s Conaluded: 177
Offiosra ing: ~ UUnlfomm: (vesorNo} |
/A
L
- _ Re-resentutives from omemgmm - —‘

__ Y ro—

:1 mw Premksos ﬂmhor......ﬂM.ﬁMé :
==

Pracemt? [ ]Ye= tdﬁa.lfno.mmdp-rmlnem.
ALt

Who owns the prembzes? W MM &”w/‘

A2
A3 ks ths Licsnce Summery on dicplay and, if so, whare..
A4 s = copy of the full Neancs avallsble for INspaotion? wuesie \YYes [ ]No
B Muff
B1  How many staff on duty/Nemo 3
c Drinks
C1  Any drinks promotions af fime of visit?
[A¥oe [ INo HYesbriet dosiin .4’?5#/ .e% Lyusvrad
D Generl Sefety
DY Do Mencgsrats(? wear uniform or weer ID badgea? ....... 7] You [ INe

ﬂuumdlwmmmabmubhqpmmhtemmmmm


FisherK_1
Highlight


X

d 3333 F3x

Page 80

Page2 ofd
Any arims preveniion peitons displiysd? !Q/Yw [ INo
Fire 8<fety Issue: kiontified? [ 1Yes [/]Bo
Llats
[~ "1 4
Do you have & CCTV eyetem? [ nﬁ [ INo
Dose  r60rd IMEGOETmennf Yo [ 1Mo Digitsil [ ¥Vidso [ ]
M@Rhmmnmdlumrdmhﬂlm :/ﬁw [ JNo
How many camer:s do you hlw?._w.m...mm
Whet Is the ratantion period for the Foctags? ...... .3"‘4..”“:..

Dezw Retention period comply with ths requiroments of the Noance?[ I¥] IN

&k nloohol pocition:d In « vuiners bl plege on premista k. Floor by
sntranoefesdl. Single cone/battion displayed [ 1Yes |

i Challenge 21/25 sppurent on pramizas?, [q9Yes [ Jilo
H@wmmmmumm-mmmmm wie[ JYo8 [ INo
hmwmmmmmmmmm[ 1Yeu |

When wes refretr treining bast completed? ... JPENTY,...|. Nﬂ)}'z’@a
hllummMthwlthTYZ.mm.mnm [ JYe [ INo

Do 007 mal R & refysaleRegleteq? LR L d.. ... [VIYaz [ ]INo
’L"".l', ":""-""" saesannnmy Iﬁw [ ]m

Ars thire any other erime preverton methods In placa by, ﬁﬂm&? on
sheives, pisase et?. AL ... - W74

YO

Pm&ndawmpmdbmmmmmlummMm



Page 81

PagaSof3

G  Geners]
ot WMW(WHMIWMMGGWMMW

Pleass Sand any completed forma to the approprisie area Hcensing mallbox



Page 82

Restricted (when completed)
heshire Constabular |

E— ___WITNESS STATEMENT ___ |

| _ Griminad Procedure Rules, 16.2; Criminal Justios Act 1987, u. §; Maglstrates’ Courtn Act 1680, .58

. URN:

' o ' T e iee
o -

| Statament of: ~ Lesloy Halliday - o
| AQe Ifunder 18 Wowr 1e mcarc omer 197: Over 18 Oooupation: _ Police Liosnaing Offoer B |
This statement (consieting of 5 page(s) esch s by ma) is true to the best of my knowledge and bellef snd |
| m;umam(mt.nugumnum\)nmmummmmmmmmmm it anything
lwh%lhmhbuhbl.ordonubalmuhm

e EE—r——— Ca——

 Slgneture: L Halliday Dote: 310872025
Chack bax f witne:s evidencs ku visually recorded ] | Winess perconsl deadle’ ahouid be entered in
lppﬁprhtouﬁbn_ ONLY. |

|

| am employed by Cheshire Police as a Licansing Officer, my rols operates under the Chief
Officers defigation of authority to deal with matters relating to ficensing under the Licensing Actl

My dutles, amongst other things, Include assisting the local police units in dealing with complaints
and compilance Issues relating to licenssd premises, as well as applications from companies and

person's who wish run a licensed premises.

{ have attained the BIIAB Level 2 Award for Personal Licence Holders in May 2018 and Ihc[
institute of Licensing’s Professional Licensing Practitioners Qualification in March 2019.

' | am providing this statement In relation to the premises known as Today's Extra, 78 Albert Road, '
Widnes, WAB 8JT

The premises is shuated on a main road {Albert Road) within Widnes Town Centre which has a
number of licensed premises, inicuding off-licences, epeciaiity shops, iate night refreshement
| Premises and a number of public houses and bars. The pramises Is also situated ciose D

@ o icie: housing reisted Support for adults (Including young adults 18 & 17 years
| old) who are homelesa or at a risk of homeleasness. It accommodates upto 39 psople and offers

‘. tartgeted support for people with @ wide range of needs Including learning disabllitiss nndlorl

Restricted (when completed)




Page 83

Restricted (when completed)
. Cheshire Gonstabulary B

— ) WITNESS STATEMENT ]
. Griminel Procedurs Rules, 18.3; Criminal Justios Aot 1967, 6. &; Maphitruies” Courts Ac 1080, 5,08 |
URN:
- T =—c— ———— —= _?.1._':-,2°l§
Pm.m of: Lesley Hallidey
autistic spectrum conditions, peopie with substance misuse and people with a history of offending, |

It provides short term focussed support fo support its residents to find sustainable long term |
l accommodation within the local community.

| Today's Exira was first granted a premises ficence in January 2021 the application describes the
premises as a modemn and professional general convenience store, stating that the applicant
wouid like to offer aclohol sales 1o aflow the business to offer the complets all-round general
convenlence service. The focus of the shop will be as a general convenlence siore with the

l proposed alcohol sales just baing a part of the overall business.

At the time of the application the premises licence holder was Red Cherry Retail Ltd - Registered
 No: 091 19784 Registered o 80 White Lion Road, Amersham, Bucks, HP7 8J8. Checks on
companies house showed that the company was incorporated on the 7" July 2014 and it had 1

director and parson with significant control named [N . BN i)

I rosigned on the 1% January 2024 and Mr Dinesh FERNANDO, B. N vas
appointed as director and person with significant control.

On 4 June 2025 an application form was received o fransfer the premises licence, the transfer '
was o @ company called Diamond 8 Retall Ltd - Registered No: 15732649 Reigsiered to -+

[P TS et rs = 7Y !
Checkes on companies house showsd that this company was incorporated on 21%* May 2024 and

It has 1 director end person with significant control _I
- FERNANDO, . it was also noted that Dinesh FERNANDO was named on the company

as a director until 18™ June 2024.

|
Mr Dinesh FERNANDO is the designated premises supervisor and It is noted that the companles |

| registered addreas Is the same as Mr FERNANDO's home address.
1

j | visited the premises on Friday 18" July as part of a mutti-agency visit In the company of Cralg
~ Restricted (when completed)




Page 84

Restricted (when completed)

! ___Cheshire Constabulary |
|. WITNESSSTATEMENT __ _ _ . ___
___ Griminal Procedurs Rules, 1¢.2; Criminal Justoo Act 1967, . 9; Maglstrates’ Courts Act 1680, 168

URN: | | B
: 4 - ~— g s

| Statement of: Ledcyl-hlidw _ _ e
Ward Haiton Borough Council Licensing Enforcement officer and Home Office Immigration

' Enforcement Officers fo carry out a licensing compliance check and immigration were conducting
checks on the persons employed and working at the premises to ensure that they have the

appropriate authority to work In the UK.

At the time of the visit on the 18! July 2025 Mr FERNANDO was not present at the premises. |
- want through the licensing questions with a shap asslatant who ideniified herself to me as iy 1] |

| The premises licence summary was on display and a copy of the full licence was available for
inspection. | was told that there were 3 members of staff on duty at the time of the visit.

Il =cvised that there was a CCTV system in operation at the premises, they have a digital
system with approximately 20 camera's, she was unaware of the retention period for the footage
stating that ita 3-4 weeks, but she didn't.know exactly. The only pereon with full access to the
CCTV s the Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor.

‘-atdvised that staff had been trained on Chalienge 25 however the training was not
l documented or aigned by staffand no documentad fraining recorda were avallabile at the premises
for Inspection. i ciaimed that refresher training had taken place within the Iast month but there |
wag nothing avalable to evidence this. |

"A staff training scheme shall be used for all staff authorised to sell alcohol. The fraining will cover
| the importance of preventing under age sales and complying with licence conditions. Refrasher
training wit be provided every 12 monthe, records will be kept and bs made avaliable to
responséble authorities.” f

l The premises licence has a condition which states: ’

| asked [ If there was a written authority to sell In place and she looked very biankiy, so l
described what information would be on & written authortty to sell and she advissd that she wesn' |

 Restricted (whon completed)




Page 85

Restricted (when completed)
Cheshire Constabulary -

| . WITNESS STATEMENT
ctlmlnwl Pumdnm ' Rulss, 18.2; cnmlnal Jmm st 1087, 59; ertr:m’ Courtz Act mn. wiB
Uﬂﬂ:

— ————— ) = Pmasd ol 6

. Statement of: _LelieyHalliday ]

aware of one.

The premises licence has a condition which states:
"All staff selling alcohol shall be authorised to sell alcoho! in wriling and a record of the

authorisation will be kept In the shop for Inspection.”

The shop operated a refusals register and this was available for Inspection with the last
documented refusal being 14/06/2025, however not all entries were being completed comectly as
there was at [saat 1 entry that was undated.

The premises licence requires that the shop have a refusals policy and this shouid be on display

within the premises along with Crimesioppers promotional material to be on display to promote
the inidative | do not recall seeing any such policy or promotional material at the premiss during

the vislt.

The premises operate an incident log book, however the last entry in It was from 2022,

| Il confirmed that they were aware of the condition relating to deliveries to the premises and |
that all of these took place aftsr 10am during the day 80 as not to cause public nulsance 1o local

residenta,

The premises licence requires notices o be on display In the premises asking for customers to
lsave the premises quietly, | do not recall sesing any such notices dispiayed at the premises. ’

The premises licance also has a condition that reads "Staff will monitor the area immaediately
oublde the premises on a regular basis to check for, and to properly dispose of, any litter from
tho premises.” There was Iitter outside of the premises In the form of empty vape cartons and food
wrappers, so there was no evidence to suggest that this condition was baing compiled with,

There were a number of breaches of the premises licence specifically around the lack of
~ Restricted (when completed)




Page 86

Restricted (when completed)
Cheshire Constabulary .

o WITNESSSTATEMENT |
Criminal Procedure Rulss, 18.2; Crimins] Justios Act 1087, s. ; Maghetrotes’ Courts Act 1099, e.lpa_ |
URN: : |

o e ) o Pwpesdl 3

Statementof:  Lasley Halliday , ]
 documented” staff training and written authority to sell and & number of signs and policles that

should be on display at the premises, these are all Section 138 offences under the licensing act
, 2003 and on summary conviction canry the penaily of a unlinhdholndloruprmonmlnl

[prlson.

. These licence breaches undermine the licensing objective of prevention of crime and disarder. A
copy of the form completed as part of the compliance checks Is exhiblted as LH1.

!lwnthoehdbymmarmopromhu. as given moducﬂpﬂononmolleenooloxpmu
comer shop or small convenience atore, this premises is more like an independent supermarket
and the alcohol offering Is vast and far greater than | would expect of a local convenlence stors. |

’ it included the draught beer machines and the kegs to uss with them, there was also a magnum
of Belvadere vodka (approx 1.50-1.75 itres) on sale, which is not your average offering. | refer to l

f photo's exhibited as LH2. l

The store doss create some demand on the local police service mainly for shopiifting offences :
, and anti-soclal behaviour. There have been approx 11 incidents recorded Up 10 31/08/2025 for |
2025 and 18 Incidents recorded throughout 2024 - refer exhiblt LH 3 for a summary of the
’ incidents. ,

po— | SRS '
| Signaturs wimeswed by: ' : _ '
| Stetamant tekn by (print neme):

L = R S _—




Page 87

Restricted (when completed)

WITNESS STATEMENT ) )
Criminal Procedure Ruigs, 16.2; Criminal Justioe Act 1967, 5. 9; Msglatratos' Cours Act 1980, 1.88
URN: |
- - T Pamidy

Stuioment of: Le;leyH-ﬂidly |
Age If under 18 @ over 18 inaars ‘over 18): Over 18  Occupsation: Pdlcouomllnq_gﬂlur

This siatement (conslsting of 3 page(s) aach signad by me) Is frue o the best of my Knowledge and belef and |
| mummhg(m nuumm&mﬁmﬁ%mmm&mmwwm k anything
which [ know to be falee, or do not bellave to be frue. |

Sisnature: L Hallday Dets:  12/06/2025
 Check box If witnaas evidencs i visuslly recorded [] | Witness personel detalis should be entered In
1 sppropriate section ONLY.

[ am empioyed by Cheshire Police as a Licensing Officer, my role operates under the Chief
i Officers deligation of authority to deal with matters relating to licensing under the Licensing Act

My duties, amongst other things, include assisting the local police units In dealing with complaints
| and compllance issues reiating to licensed premises, as well as appilcations from companies and
person's who wish run a ficensed premisss. |

| have attained the BIIAB Level 2 Award for Personal Licence Holders in May 2018 and the
| Institute of Licensing's Professional Licensing Practitioners Qualification In March 2019.

I attended Today's Extra, 78 Albert Road, Widnes, WAB 8T on Thursday 28" August 2025 at
‘ approximatoly 15:45 with Hatton Borough Coundll Licensing Enforcement Ocer [N

| The purpose of the visit was to ansure that the notices wers still on display advising of the request
o review the premises licence and to check whether any action had been taken o resolve the
compliance issues identified on 18" July 2025,

lAtth- time of the visi the DPS Dinesh FERNANDO was on site and thers were approx 3 othar |
members of staif seen working in the shop.

|
_- | asked Mr Femnando If the premises licencs was avallable for inspection and he was abie fo

Restricted (when completed)

REZ1IT




when completed)

—,J.I': 4 L]

| 1L A nSlabulary
(- WITN SBSTATEM_EB_JT o N
. Criminal Procedurs Rules, 16.2; Criminal Justico Act 1887, 0. §; Meghtretes’ Courte Ack 1060, 008 |

Y
—e e i -

f Statoment of: I;onlklh_dly
Produce it and the summary was on display. - |

| Mr Femando provided a bookiet that had been put in place, it contained & due dilligence cheakilst ’
| of things to check at the prormises, this was signed by Mr Femando and dated 27* July 2025, then

| it had & Whitten Authorlty to Sel which Mr Femando had signed on 17 August 2025 and the staf
i had signed on 18 August 2028 which It was noted was the day before the Homs Offics submitiad |

!ﬂlelppﬂcaﬂonforrwhwcfmumco. ]

Pmrawn indepth information for staff to read ag part of their training and an age verification
policy had been put in place, however this was signed by Mr Femando on 17% August 2025 but I
]noneofthcshﬂhudllgnod it. |
?

{ .
There was a refusals register in place and staif had staried to use this again since the visit on 17t l
July 2025 and eniries were sean from the beginning of August 2028, [

| Part of the licence condition regarding refusal of service requirea A notice advising customers of
the refusal policy shail be on display. ‘Crimeatoppers’ promotional material will be on display to
| support the inftiative”

l No eviience of the refusals policy or Crimestoppars information was seen on display, l
]

Thaﬂeanoohnammonm:hm'Anyhm of crime and disorder at or immediately
outside the premises, wilnessed by staff, will be recorded In an incident book: kept at the pumbu.,
‘Thll book will be kept In the shop and available for inspaction”

’Thmmln incident book In piace however the last entry was made In 2022, 1 would axpact

this to contain any incidents that have occumed at the premises and in particular incidents of;
shopiiiting which | can see from police racords thers have been a number of incidents reported in
] 2024 and 2026 and none of them are documented In the Incident book.

tl)

Restrictad (when complete




Page 89

Restricted {(when completed)

Cheshire Constabulary e - |

| .. WITNESS STATEMENT - ]

____ Criminsl Procadure Rules, 18.2; Crimina] Justice Act 1867, 5. §; muweoumm_i,m.mga |
URN: | ) N

' = ’ — ~Pagedafl

Sttwmntoh Lesloy Halliday B | |
' | asked Mr Fernando about his CCTV and he advised that the retention period Is more than 30 |
days, there is &n iPad which Is kept by the till where the staff can show officers any footage,

however the only person with access to downioad and provide the footage to the police or other l
| responsible authorities is Mr Femando. l

| The premises licence conditions require that "Notices shall be on display In the premises azking ,
customers to (2ave the premises quietly.” l

Initially the notice couki not be located, it was stuck in the window but it was facing maouhldaof'
Ithe stone rather than inslkde where customers approaching the door were able to read it | left Mr
Fch-ndo some more prominent posters requesting customers fo lsave quletly to assist with

compiiance of this conditian. '
I When we arrived at the premises there was a male sat outsids the premises, he was sat on top |

of a hokiall, he was still there when we left and there was also a female sat outside the premises
jon the oppostic side to the male,

l
Exhibt LH 4 evidences the bookist viewad during the visi and pictures of the male and hmab'
sat outside the premises,

i = _
— e a
| signature witnesesd by: S E —
| Sbsbement txincn by (print nama): ' - '
| St - I |

Re

stricted (when completed)

&

h—n-am




Page 90

incidents at Today's Extre, 78 Albert Road, Widnes, WAS 8JT

25000718033 - 268/08/2025 23:35 - Police Generated Use SY on Closurs if Wanted Arrest is Mads

Original Incident Report: NZ28 - 2 vary young males have Just gone Into Todaya Extra - now
heading down cooper street - no shoes on.

Clocure SBummary: EP GR218 - spoken with store assistent - these 2 males come in qulte often,
usually with parents - believs they tive on Cooper Strest but unsure what number. They bought

some swaets then left; staff had no concemas.
28000646738 - Reportaed 08/08/2025 08:57 ~ Shoplitting

Original Incldant Report: THEFT OF ALCOHOL - TODAYS EXTRA — CASE OF CORONA £6.49 -
SHOP HAS CCTV - REGULAR CUSTOMER POSS DONE IT BEFORE

Closure Summary: C82 TO BE TABKED TO AN OFFICER - RP WILL SEND IN COTV FOOTAGE OF
SUs

28000BE9188 - Reported 17/07/2025 15:08 - Personal / Nulsance and Environmental Antl-
Soolal Behaviour

Original Incident Repart: “REPEAT**VULNERABLE* **TODAYS EXTRA** CALLER REPORTING 3
ADULTS OUTSIDE INTIMIDATING CUSTOMERS AND ASKING FOR MONEY - AND TO BUY THEM

THINGS
Clouure iummnrw BN CRU LOG ENTRY: B #CRU REVIEWED NO CRIME RECORDED #

GR163 - SEARCHED [ WHO WAS OUTSIDE THE SHOP AND ITWAS NEG. SPOKEN
TO STAFF AND TOLD PEOPLE OUTSIDE NOT TO INTIMIADATE ANYONE. CAN BE CLOSED

25000588842 - Reported 17/07/2025 13:56

Orfginel Inoldent Report: todaya extra - caller reporting ongoing lasues with ganga of psopls
outside the shop begging for money - they are asking psople for money or to buy them a scratoh
ogrd - she states they are now coming Into the shop and asking peopls to guy their gooda for
them -callera saks them to leave and sometimen they do but sometimes they state they are
doing no harm and will nat leava - it is the same group of individuals and belleves the majority
of them are from Brennan lodge - celler has barred one cf them - she states It I affecting her

businees and putting people off comingin

Clazure Summary: BN CLOSNG TO BE BE TASKED TO LOCAL BEAT
CRU LOG ENTRY: B #CRU REVIEWED NO CRIME RECORDED #
28000881805 - Reported 16/07/2025 11:05 - Hate

Originel Incldent Report: *TODAYS EXTRA* "GANG OF PEOPLE OUTSIDE DRINKING” -
SHOUTING AT THE RP AND MEMEBERS OF PUBLIC

Closure Summary: BN GR129- Spoken to rp, no complaints, sald they warent shouting any sort
of abuse, Just shouting which wes annoying. The audio on the cotvla not working. A passer said
that thers was some raclal comments, however cannot say who It wae and dosant want to be

involved. This can bs closad
28000482822 - Reported 02/08/2025 14:35 - Fraud



Page 91

Inoidents &t Today's Extra, 78 Albert Road, Widnes, WAS 6JT

Original incident Report: "TODAYS EXTRA AND GOOD NEWS whers Is was declinad for £45.00"
Caller has had hie card on Saturday night end has lost !t. Last sesn at Morrisons Dally. caller has
cancalled the card. They have epent £45.00 at Today's Extra and £26.45 at Good Newa, Caller

has besn going In the shop looking for the CCTV and the shop heve etated that he cannotview it

but they do have i,

Closure Summary: C90 Fraudulsnt use of @ bank card. £70.00 lost and caller has now
cancalled the card, no further money can be apent.

28000417889 - Reported 21/06/2026 07:48 - Shoplifting

Orliginal Incident Report: *VULNERABLE LOCATION DUE TO REPEAT*

CALLER WISHING TO REPORT THE THEFT OF TWO BOTTLES OF BEER APPROX VALUE OF £8.

INCIDENT ON CCTV AND STORE WISHING TO MAKE A COMPLAINT.
Clocurs Summary: C52 G4 LOGGED FOR CRIMING
25000312570 - Reportad 17/04/2025 08:01 - Suapicious Peraon/vehicle/aotivity

Originat Inoldent Report: *VULNERABLE*

RP raparting mate by name of [ h2s beer into ths store * Todays Extre
“esatem Europaan supermarist on approx. 4 ocossions this moming. He was acting very
strangsly (possible on druga?). He has bought on two occasions he has besn In Vodka shots to s
total of £6 cash. He was canrying a ses-through prisoner bag with "Altoourse” written on it. 30
possibly just been releassd from prison last ssen at approx. 0821 Hra heading into town centrs

Clorure Bummary: SK1 OBS PASSED TO N228
25000281868 ~ Reported 27/03/2025 08:08 - Concemn for Safety

Orfginal incident Report: *LOCATION TODAY EXTRA OPP WETHERSPOONS* RP CALLED INTO
WIHD AND WANTED TO STAY ANON, HAS JUST 8EEN WHITE MALE IN 40'S WITH BEARD AND
WHITE CHILD THINKS IS FEMALE 11-12 YRS QUTSIDE LOGATION WHO LOOK HOMELESS, BOTH
LOOKED DISHEVELLED. RP HAS LEFT THEM S8OME FOOD AND SAID THE STORE MENTIONED

THEY HAD BEEN THERE SINCE 8AM THIS MORN.

Clozure Summery: 8D GP22 - THIS CAN BE CLOSED. BOTH ARE ADULTS AND IDENTIFY AS
MALES

25000163260 ~ Reported 26/02/2025 12:23 - Shoplifting

Original Incident Report: *TODAY'S EXTRA* -CALLER REPORTING SHOPLIFTING - VALUE
UNKNOWN - HE USED TO BE A REGULAR - NAME NOT KNOWN - DESC 5FT8, 8LIM BUILD, WM,
DARK HAIR, WEARS GLASSES, BLACK PANTS, BLACK HOODY. GREEN COAT, AND BLACK

TRAINERS - CCTV IN STORE.
Closure Bummary: C52 CLOSED FOR CRIMING AND SLOW TIME ENQ
2800010169& - Reportad 08/02/2025 18:13 - Susplcious Psrzon/vehicle/activity

Original Inoldent Report; **TODAYS EXTRA**CALLER REPORTING THAT THERE I8 THREE
YOUTHB AT THE GASHPOINT - IT APPEARS THAT THEY ARE ENTERING CODES INTO THE
CASHPOINT & NOW THREE PECPLES CARDS HAVE BEEN 'SWALLOWED' BY THE CASHPOINT



Page 92

Incidents at Today’s Extra, 78 Albert Road, Widnes, WAB &IT

Closure Summary: SK1FISJH-CanwesendRPa measage that IML will be closed

24011086376 - Repcrted 20/12/2024 07:34 — Theft Other

Originel Inoldent Report: WHEN OPENING THE S8HOP TODAYS EXTRA- THE PAPERS WERE LEFT
OUTSIDE WITH THE MAGAZINES - THE BOX HAS BEEN OFEN AND ALL THE MAGAZINES TAKEN.

CAUGHT ON CCTV- WHITE MALE, TALL, THIN, BLACK TRAINERS, DARK BLUE JACKET AND BLUE
PANTS. PAPERS WERE LEFT AT 0530 AND MALE OPENS THEM AT 0540, 44 MAGAZINES TAKEN-

VALUE L/K. POSS RECOGNISES THE MALE AS A LOCAL NFD.

Closure Summary: C56 FOR CRIMING AND ASSESSMENT - SUSPECT SEEN TAKING THEM ON
CCTV AND CALLER POSS RECOGNISES HIM AS A LOCAL BUT DOESNT KNOW HIS NAME
**CCTVwas never provided to the police for this Ingldemt**

24000916085 - Reported 28/10/2024 07:40 - Shoplifting

Original Incldent Repart: Cail from Todaya EXTRA, around 1900 & group of around 3 malas were
outside. A girl got @ shopping basiost, filled it with cleaning products valus of £64.88, She walked
to the door and handed the basket to onie of the males outaids who then ran off with It. There Is

CCTVotthla,

Closure Summuary: C52 B4 logged for oriming and altocation via NICHE

24000841172 - Reportsd 01/10/2024 23:87 - Robbery

Originalincident Report: Caller raporting 2-malsa have approach and sterted asking him
mohey and atterpted to grab himy/ take things from pooksts

Closure Summary: C40 2 MALES LODGED IN CUST - CON OBS HAS ENDED
24000768824 - Reported 08/08/2024 09:36 - Violanos / Harassment / ThreatTo Life

Original Incident Report: *REPEAT**VULNERABLE" VAGRANT SITTING O/S BOUNCING A BALL
AGAINST RP'S BHOP WINDOW AND WALL, BEGGING, DRINKING CAN OF ALCOHOL. NFD ON
MALE. CUSTOMERS HAVE STATED THAT THE MALE I8 BEING THREATENING (NFD ON THREATS).
WHITE MALE, SHORT HAIR, BLACK TRACKSUIT, 30'S. MALE IS BANNED FROM COMING INTO
SHOP AND KEEPS LOOKING IN THROUGH WINDOW AT RP, RP FEELS THIS IS PROVOCATION

AND GOADING.

Closure Summary: C10 FI8 (AE) - Currently 8 Open incldents on The North (38UR). Can we put
@ callinto RP and if vagrant has gone this will be suitable for close to Niche for siication to baat

offioer to vontact RP and problam eolve.

I have spoken to RF, he sald that the mate left this moming after fighting with someone. Police
took his detalls - IML-1812040 Is linked | bellsve. WTll ologe

. CRU LOG ENTRY: A
#CRU HAVE REVIEWED, CRIMED AND TASKED THIS INCIDENT #
This Incldent hea besn recorded and tasied following a Live Incident review.

CRU will NOT review this Incident further.



Page 93

Incldents at Today's Extra, 78 Albart Road, Widnes, WAB 6T

If any further Crimes or victima are ldentified during the managemsnt of this Incident or
investigation, then the attending/aasisting offloer or OIC MUST submita Crime report to the CRU

before the and of their TOD.

This Incident should NOT be paased to the OMU control area. The Incident ahould ba closed by
the FCC and Qualifier 9 ahould not be changsd from CRU CRIMED

24000070852 - Reported 02/08/2024 06:36 - Shopliting

Original incident Report: *REPEAT* REPEAT VICTIM/LOCATION OF SHOPLIFTING

*VULNERABLE* REPEAT VICTIM/LOCATION OF SHOPLIFTING

TODAYS EXTRA. CALLER REPORTING LAST NIGHT AT 23:56 A MALE {DESC: WEARING
TRAINERS, WHITE BOTTOMS, BLACK PANTS WITH GREY UNDER ARMOUR TSHIRT WITH GREY
CAP. 5 FT 4 STUBBLE, DARK BLONDE MUZZY, BLACK JACKET TIED ARCUND HISWAISTE. CAME
ON FOOT) ENTERED THE S8HOP AND STOLE 1 BOTTLE OF SAMBUCA £23.00 AND A CAN OF

PEPSI. LEFT ON FOOT.
Closurs Summary: C52 CLOSE FOR CRIMING

2000585817 - Reported 24/06/2024 12:22 - Shopliting

Original incidant Report: TODAYS EXTRA - AT 1830HRS 23/06 THEFT OF A CRATE OF BEER
WORTH £20 - CCTV FOOTAGE - DESG - WHITE MALE LATE 308, 8LACK SHORTS , BLUE TOP
LONG SLEEVES , BLACK AND WHITE TRAINERS - THIN MALE - DARK BROWN ~- CALLER HAS

SEEN HIM BEFORE AWHILE AGO

Clovure Summary: C52 TO BE TASKED TO AN OFFICER - CALLER 8AID THE MANAGER WILL
HAVE THE EMAIL TO SEND IN CCTV

24000510588 - Reported 08/06/2024 15:21 - Personal/Nuisance and Environmental Antl-Soclal
Behaviour

Original inaldent Report: *TODAYS EXTRA* CALLER REPORTING THAT - S (NFD) -
HAS BEEN BANNED FROM THEIR STORE BUT HAS BEEN (N TODAY AT 15:10. CALLER SIATES HE
HAS BEEN BANNED FOR SHOPLIFTING PREVIQUSLY BUT HAS NOT SHOPLIFTED TODAY AS
CALLER ESCORTED HiM OUT BEFORE HE HAD CHANCE. GALLER STATES HE IS COMING TO
THE STORE EVERY OTHER DAY EVEN THOUGH HE I8 AWARE HE IS BANNED,

Closure Summary: BP CAN BE CLOSED FOR TASKING TO LOCAL BEAT TEAM
24000495168 - Reportad 03/08/2024 12:08 - Shoplifting
Original inaldent Repart: *REPEAT**VULNERABLE*

CALLER REPORTING A THEFT OF FROSTY JACK CIDER TO THE VALLE OF £8.26 - CALLER
DOESNT KNOW TH NAME OF THE MALE BUT KNOWS HE LIVES ON BRENNAN LODGE - CCTV

CAN REVIEWED
Closurs Summary: CE2 WILL CLOSE FOR CRIMING
24000476141 - Reported 27/06/2024 18:44 - Shoplifting



Page 94

Incidents et Today's Extra, 78 Albert Road, Widnes, WAS 8JT

What has happened: A white mais came into the shop and a blus bike which he parked outside
and started shopping in a baaket and run out with the while shopping and the basket. CCTV

avallable.
Approximate vate £60.00- Washing Uquld, sandwiches end the shopping basket,

Crimed us: 048/00/THEF1/48/043/00: Theft from shops and stallg.
24000431800 - Reported 12/05/2024 08:06 - Shoplifting
Original incldent Report: “REPEAT* REPEAT LOCATION FOR INCIDENTS

SHOP: TODAYS EXTRA: MALE STEALING - NOW LEFT THE SHOP - STOLEN CANDLES, WASHING
LIQUID AND AIR FRESHNERS AND CLEANING PRODUCTS. MALE DESC: TALL, 408 BLONDE
HAIR, BLACK T SHIRT, BLUE TRACKSUIT BOTTOMS, BLACK TRAINERS, WHITE DECATHLON BAG,
ON A PUSH BIKE. CALLER DOENT RECONGNISE HIM.

Clocure 8ummary: C82 CLOSE FOR CRIMING, CCTVWILL BE EMAILED INTO US

24000418112 - Reported 06/06/2024 18:38 Peraonel/Nulsanos And Environmental Anti-Sealat
Beheviour

Original incldent Report: *VULNERABLEYREPEAT*

RP WANTING TO HAVE PEOPLE BEGGING OUTSIDE STORE MOVED ON. THERE HAVE BEEN 2

PEOPLE OUTSIDE TODAY, NOT BEING AGGRESSIVE, BUT BEING A NUISANCE TO STORE AND
CUSTOMERS AS SITTING IN FRONT OF ATM ETC.

Clogure Summary: BN CLOSING TO PASS TO LPU
24000411583 - Reported 05/05/2024 11:20 - Violence / Harassment / Threat To Life

Original inoldent Repori: GALLER REPORTING LAST NIGHT THERE WAS A FIGHT OUTSIDE THE
SHOP AT 23:35 BETWEEN 2 MALES WHICH CALLER STATED POLICE DID NOT ATTEND TO- ONE
MALE HIT THE OTHER AND STOLE THEIR PHONE DURING THE FIGHT- THE MALE WHO STOLE
THE PHONE I8 CURRENTLY OUTSIDE THE SHOP SLEEPING AND HAS BEEN “BEGGING FOR

MONEY"- CALLER HAS CCTV FOOTAGE,

Closure Summary: C10 G122- HAS BEN S8EARCHED, NOTHING FOUND - NO
PHONE WAS FOUND - THERE I8 NO VICTIM IDENTIFIED SO THIS CAN BE GLOSED WITH NO
VICTIM IDENTIFIED

24000308749 - 03/04/2024 14:55 - Assistance To Other Agencies / Utilities
Original Incldent Report: PLEASE SEE ATTACHED EMAIL FOR DETAILS

Closure Summary: EN NJ88 - | have reviswed this request - Immigration visits at 3 business
addresses In Widnes, no specific request for Police asslstance with these visits, request just

asks for (o numbers to be provided.
24000223278 - Reportad 03/03/2024 18:08 - Violence / Harassment / Threat to Life

Original Incident Report: vulnerabls - cafler reporting whilst In a shop st looation, he bumped
into a female by mistake didnt think anything ot it, carried on with shopping then moments later
amale started shouting at caller saying that he Is going to slash his face lots of verbal abuse,
checlad out, the mals atarted to follow behind him end started goaturing that he had a knife In



Page 95

Incidents at Today's Extra, 78 Albert Road, Wkines, WAB 8T

his Joggere. caller ran off and the male stopped but statsd that paopls cams out of different
shop to 880 what was going on.

Closure Summary: C10 For allocating to an officer through niche
24000178119 - Reported 18/02/2024 10:07 - Shoplifting

Original incident Report: 12/02 2036HRS — MALE CAME (N DRUNK STOLE ITEMS - HE WAS
WITH 2 YOUNG FEMALES - CALLER TOLD THE MALE HE I8 BARRED S0 TO PAY BACK THE
MONEY BUT HE HAS NOT - HE TOOK £16 WORTH OF SNACKS CHOCOLATE AND CRISPS - ALL

CAUGHT-ON CCTV

Closure Summary: C51 for criming
24000142302 - Reported 08/02/2024 09:38 - Shopliting

Original Incldant Report: TODAY EXTRA STORE - Infmt reporting a shopilifitng which happened
yesterdey at 2030. Femnala was refused aale of aloohol due to belng 0o Intox, she then returned
and stole a orate of beer worth £14.98. Colleaguea chased after her once she left the store and
they manged to retrieve the crate and It can be re sold. Thay heve CCTV. Daac - White female,

sarly 40s, tall, possible around 14 stones, long black halr which was tied up, dark trousers, blue

&nd whits blouse, carrying a black coat, on foot

Closure Summary: C52 For criming
24000124880 - Reported 28/01/2024 08:21 - Violence / Harassment / Threst To Life

Original Incident Report: caller reporting an aggressive male standing In the shop door way
kdeking off, shouting and screaming about the caller aving his shoes. male sounds calm in the
background,

Closure Summary: C10 GR1265 - MALE UNDER ARREST 4A PUBLIC ORDER
CRU 23001 | have reviewad thia Incident from the awalting closure tab on Safe.

Tha circumatancas of this case are as follows The suspect in this cass has baan shouting at the
aggrieved aa they walked past In the street and waving thelr shoes at them. The aggrieved wes
so alarmed thy called the polica. On the attendance of the offloers the suspect was arrested for

@ publie order offencs.

| have recorded this as & S4A POA and | will task this to the OIC for progreasion as the offender
was In custody and cherged

24002118048 - Reported 26/01/2024 21:14 - Violence / Harassment / Threat To Lifs

Original incident Report: **CALLER VULN AS REPEAT VICTIM 7 SUSP VLN DUE TO MH#*

CALLING FROM A SHOP CALLED TODAYS EXTRA - WANTING TO REPORT A MALE CALLED
I WHO THEY HAVE A LOT OF TROUBLE WITH - HE I8 EITHER STEALING OR - HE I8 THERE
NOW AND HARASSING CUSTOMERS AND HE I8 REFUSING TO LEAVE

Closure Summary: C10 GR135 | have advised the Informent to contact back IF male begina to
causs violence or crima, he Is outside hiding out from the rain s he s homeless.

24000037150 - Reported 07/01/2024 14:37 - Psrsonal / Nulsance And Environmental Antl-
Soclal Bahaviour



Page 96

Incidents et Today’s Extra, 78 Albart Road, Widnes, WAS &IT

Origtnal Inaident Report: CALLER REPORTING THE SAME MALE WHO ALWAYS SITS AT THE
SHOP BEGGING AND HARRASING CUSTOMERS IS BACK SAT OUTSIDE THE SHOP AGAIN
DOING THE S8AME THING. HE I8 KNOWN TO STEAL FROM THE SHOP AND THIS 18 ONGOING,

Olosure Summary: BN 6)16 JE hee been moved on. He was not causing any lasues just sat
there but have updated staff that he's besn moved on

CRU
INFORMANT REPORTS ONGOING ISSLUES WITH MALE BEGGING OUTSIDE OF STORE

BEAT OFFICER ATTENDED & MOVED MALE ON. STAFF HAVE NOT PROVIDED ANY NEW
OFFENCES OF THEFT TO ATTENDING PATROL.



Page 97

This lsle on both sides contalns alcohol and continues all the way to the door with spirits behind
the countsr.



Page 98

- ks 2 al tl‘-

" - _ i o

Pictured hera are the spirits that are behind the counter Including en axpansive magnum
vized bottle of Belvediers Vodka, In front of them is & vape display.



Page 99

Alcohol In the upstalrs stook room



Page 100

Alcohol In the upstairs stock room



Page 101

Alcohol In the rear warehouse including additional atock of the beer dispenaer machines.



Page 102

Further stocks of wine and beers In the rear warshouse of the premiaes.



Page 103

Stooks of beer in tha rear warehouss Including high strangth beer from Carlaberg.



Page 104

Further stock of Beer In the rear warehouss.



Page 105

Staff training document put in placa since tha initial visl, some parts are Incomplate.



Page 106

Chsckiist that forms part of the hook. Due Dilligence checks signed off as being completed on
28/07/2025



Page 107

Wiritten Authority to Sell - Signed by the DPS on 17/08/2025 end by the Staff on 18/08/2025



Page 108

Training information that atef? are eaked to read,




Page 109




Page 110

A:os. Verification policy put In place on 17* August - Not eigned by any Staff Merbers only the
D



Page 111

Refusals Reglster in place and being used.



Page 112

Msle shting outside the shop



Page 113

Female 2at autside the shop.



Page 114

@
UKAS

MARALE RN
A iira

APPE

Cheshire
Fire & Rescue Service

F i i 3

W3

NDIX E

Kim Hesketh : Please ask for: Kathryn Harkin
Address: Cheshire Fire & Rescue Service
Winwick Road

Warrington

ticensing Manager
Halton Borough council

Sent via emaii

Email:

Ref. H0400148

Website: https:/fwww cheshirefire qov.uk/fire-protection/

Date: 02 September 2025

To Whom It May Concern,

LICENSING ACT 2003 — MAKING REPRESENTATION
PREMISES: 78 ALBERT ROAD, WIDNES, WAS 6JT

The information supplied in support of an application for a premises licence dated 21 August 2025
has been examined by the Cheshire Fire Authority. We wish to make a representation to the Licensing
Authority because we are of the opinion that the public safety objective has not been adequately

addressed.

The area(s) of concern are as follows; _
In light of the immigrations findings we are concerned the prohibition notice that is place at

this premises will be breached.

Please would you advise us, at your earliest convenience, the date and time of the Licensing
Committee hearing.

If the relevant areas of concern are addressed and adequate notice is given to the Authority the

representation may be withdrawn.
This letter is without prejudice to any enforcement action that Cheshire Fire Authority may take under

fire safety legislation.

Please contact the inspecting officer named above should you wish ta discuss this matter.

Yours faithfully,

Kathryn Harkin

B 01656 363700 )
p www.rheshirefire. gov.auk

Page 1



FisherK_2
Highlight


Page 115 APPENDIX F

Kim Hesketh nee Fisher

From: Ged Philbin

Sent: 16 September 2025 16:21

To: Pamela Wallace; Kim Hesketh nee Fisher
Subject: Licensed Premises .

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Cllr Wallace

Canlplace on record my support for the withdrawal of the Premises license /number LPA0436
personal licence number PA061929

Today's extra

On the grounds of breaking the licensing act /not to be operating within the law on information from
the Home Office .

Regards.

Sent from Outlook for iOS




Page 116

APPENDIX G
Licensing objectives and aims
1.2 The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which must be
addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.
1.3 The licensing objectives are:
* The prevention of crime and disorder;
¢ Public safety;
¢ The prevention of public nuisance; and
¢ The protection of children from harm.
1.4 Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives, so that the
promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times.
1.5 However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes. These are vitally
important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in licensing work. They include:
e protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and noise nuisance caused
by irresponsible licensed premises;
¢ giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively manage and police the
night-time economy and take action against those premises that are causing problems;
¢ recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our local communities
by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging innovation and supporting responsible
premises;
¢ providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local communities and
empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about the most appropriate licensing
strategies for their local area; and
® encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local residents the
opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may affect them.

Licence conditions — general principles

1.16 Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in setting the
parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. The use of wording such as “must”, “shall”
and “will” is encouraged. Licence conditions:

e must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives;

e must be precise and enforceable;

¢ must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve;

¢ should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities placed on the
employer by other legislation;

e must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises and events
concerned;

¢ should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated that they are
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an individual case;

¢ should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation;

¢ should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met, (for example, whilst beer glasses
may be available in toughened glass, wine glasses may not);

¢ cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the direct management of
the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the behaviour of customers in the immediate
vicinity of the premises or as they enter or leave; and ¢ should be written in a prescriptive format.



Page 117

Crime and disorder

2.6 The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the prevention of
illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with Home Office Immigration
Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these matters. Licence conditions that are considered
appropriate for the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises might include requiring a
premises licence holder to undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed
premises or requiring that evidence of a right to work check, either physical or digital (e.g. a copy of
any document checked as part of a right to work check or a clear copy of the online right to work
check) are retained at the licensed premises.

9. Determining applications

9.12 Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some cases it is likely
that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing authority’s main source of advice in relation
to a particular licensing objective. For example, the police have a key role in managing the night-time
economy and should have good working relationships with those operating in their local area[footnote
5]. The police should usually therefore be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on matters
relating to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. However, any responsible
authority under the 2003 Act may make representations with regard to any of the licensing objectives
if they have evidence to support such representations. Licensing authorities must therefore consider
all relevant representations from responsible authorities carefully, even where the reason for a
particular responsible authority’s interest or expertise in the promotion of a particular objective may
not be immediately apparent. However, it remains incumbent on all responsible authorities to ensure
that their representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a hearing.

Home Office Immigration Enforcement acting as a responsible authority

9.25 The Immigration Act 2016 made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in respect of
premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment with effect from 6 April 2017. In effect this
conveys the role of responsible authority to Home Office Immigration Enforcement who exercises the
powers on the Secretary of State’s behalf. When Immigration Enforcement exercises its powers as a
responsible authority it will do so in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective
because it is concerned with the prevention of illegal working or immigration offences more broadly.

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives

9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should be considered
on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any representations or objections that have
been received from responsible authorities or other persons, and representations made by the
applicant or premises user as the case may be.

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to achieve.

9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable to achieve that end. While
this does not therefore require a licensing authority to decide that no lesser step will achieve the aim,
the authority should aim to consider the potential burden that any condition would impose on the
premises licence holder (such as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as
well as the potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is
imperative that the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its determination are
limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing outside those parameters. As
with the consideration of licence variations, the licensing authority should consider wider issues such



Page 118

as other conditions already in place to mitigate potential negative impact on the promotion of the
licensing objectives and the track record of the business. Further advice on determining what is
appropriate when imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter 10. The
licensing authority is expected to come to its determination based on an assessment of the evidence
on both the risks and benefits either for or against making the determination.

11. Reviews

The review process

11.1 The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club premises
certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems associated with the
licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises licence or club premises certificate.

11.2 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, a responsible
authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review the licence or certificate
because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives.

11.3 An application for review may be made electronically, provided that the licensing authority
agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent hardcopy of the application, if the licensing authority
requires one. The licensing authority may also agree in advance that the application need not be given
in hard copy. However, these applications are outside the formal electronic application process and
may not be submitted via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s electronic facility. The applicant must
give notice of the review application to the responsible authorities and holder of the licence or
certificate. The licensing authority is required to advertise a review application.

11.4 In addition, the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises to which it relates was
made the subject of a closure order by the police based on nuisance or disorder and the magistrates’
court has sent the authority the relevant notice of its determination, or if the police have made an
application for summary review on the basis that premises are associated with serious crime and/or
disorder.

11.5 Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a premises licence or club
premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing authority may apply for a review if it is concerned
about licensed activities at premises and wants to intervene early without waiting for representations
from other persons. However, it is not expected that licensing authorities should normally act as
responsible authorities in applying for reviews on behalf of other persons, such as local residents or
community groups. These individuals or groups are entitled to apply for a review for a licence or
certificate in their own right if they have grounds to do so. It is also reasonable for licensing authorities
to expect other responsible authorities to intervene where the basis for the intervention falls within
their remit of that other authority. For example, the police should take appropriate steps where the
basis for the review is concern about crime and disorder or the sexual exploitation of children.
Likewise, where there are concerns about noise nuisance, it is reasonable to expect the local authority
exercising environmental health functions for the area in which the premises are situated to make the
application for review.

11.9 Responsible authorities and other persons may make representations in respect of an application
to review a premises licence or club premises certificate. They must be relevant (i.e., relate to one or
more of the licensing objectives) and, in the case of other persons, must not be frivolous or vexatious.
Representations must be made in writing and may be amplified at the subsequent hearing or may
stand in their own right. Additional representations which do not amount to an amplification of the
original representation may not be made at the hearing. Representations may be made electronically,



Page 119

provided the licensing authority agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy, unless the
licensing authority waives this requirement.

11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems identified
at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning of their concerns and
the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise the licence or certificate holder of
the steps they need to take to address those concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such
warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in
promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be used to
undermine this co- operation.

Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review

11.16 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may exercise on
determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives.

11.17 The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any further steps
appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to prevent a licensing
authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder and/or to recommend improvement within
a particular period of time. It is expected that licensing authorities will regard such informal warnings
as an important mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and
that warnings should be issued in writing to the licence holder.

11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health officers have
already issued warnings requiring improvement — either orally or in writing — that have failed as part
of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing authorities should not merely repeat
that approach and should take this into account when considering what further action is appropriate.
Similarly, licensing authorities may take into account any civil immigration penalties which a licence
holder has been required to pay for employing an illegal worker.

11.19 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is appropriate, it
may take any of the following steps:

modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions or any alteration
or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the hours of opening or by requiring
door supervisors at particular times;

exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude the performance
of live music or playing of recorded music(where it is not within the incidental live and recorded music

exemption)[footnote 10];

remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that the problems
are the result of poor management;

suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
revoke the licence.

11.20 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities should so
far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the representations identify.



Page 120

The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these causes and should always be no more
than an appropriate and proportionate response to address the causes of concern that instigated the
review.

11.21 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal and
replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a problem where the
cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management decisions made by that
individual.

11.22 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company practice
or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be an inadequate response
to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review hearings are generated, it should be
rare merely to remove a succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear
indication of deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives.

11.23 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions of
licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of up to three
months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three months could impact on the
business holding the licence financially and would only be expected to be pursued as an appropriate
means of promoting the licensing objectives or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a licence
could be suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring the holder from allowing the problems
that gave rise to the review to happen again. However, it will always be important that any detrimental
financial impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate
to the promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal working in licensed
premises. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, the licensing authority should not
hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough action to tackle the problems at the premises and
where other measures are deemed insufficient, to revoke the licence

Reviews arising in connection with crime

11.24 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected with
licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs problems at the premises,
money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband or stolen goods, the sale of firearms, or
the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing authorities do not have the power to judge the criminality
or otherwise of any issue. This is a matter for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when
determining such a review is not therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to
ensure the promotion of the crime prevention objective.

11.25 Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not part of
criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations giving rise to a review
of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of any criminal proceedings. Some
reviews will arise after the conviction in the criminal courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any
case, it is for the licensing authority to attempt to go beyond any findings by the courts, which should
be treated as a matter of undisputed evidence before them

11.26 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises have
been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should be taken in
connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. It is
important to recognise that certain criminal activity or associated problems may be taking place or



Page 121

have taken place despite the best efforts of the licence holder and the staff working at the premises
and despite full compliance with the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the
licensing authority is still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The
licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives and
the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and not those of the
individual licence holder.

11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises which
should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed premises:

for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 and the laundering
of the proceeds of drugs crime;

for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;

for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which does
considerable damage to the industries affected;

for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the health,
educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of young people;

for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;
by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;
as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;

for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;
for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their immigration status in the
UK;

for unlawful gambling; and
for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol

11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office(Immigration Enforcement)
and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities, will use the review
procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing
authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined through the premises
being used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance —
should be seriously considered.

Review of a premises licence following closure order or illegal working compliance order

11.29 Licensing authorities are subject to certain timescales, set out in the legislation, for the review
of a premises licence following a closure order under section 80 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime
and Policing Act 2014or an illegal working compliance order under section 38 of and Schedule 6to the
Immigration Act 2016. The relevant time periods run concurrently and are as follows:



Page 122

when the licensing authority receives notice that a magistrates’ court has made a closure order it has
28 days to determine the licence review — the determination must be made before the expiry of the
28th day after the day on which the notice is received;

the hearing must be held within ten working days, the first of which is the day after the day the notice
from the magistrates’ court is received;

notice of the hearing must be given no later than five working days before the first hearing day (there
must be five clear working days between the giving of the notice and the start of the hearing).



	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Reg Sub Minutes - 28.08.25

	3 Application to Review a Premises Licence - Todays Extra, 78 Albert Road, Widnes, WA8 6JT
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F
	Appendix G




